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Hong Kong
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Turnover for the year ended 31 December 2020 was RMB1,590 million,
decreased by 24% compared to RMB2,103 million for the last year.

e
TURNOVER
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Hop Hing owns the rights to operate QSR chains,
including Yoshinoya and Dairy Queen, in the northern
part in the PRC. Operating areas span across Beijing and
Tianjin municipalities, Hebei, Liaoning, Heilongjiang,
Jilin, Henan, Shanxi and Shaanxi Provinces, and the
Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region in the PRC.

/
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In 2020, the world experienced social and economic turbulence on
a scale unseen in a century. Indeed Hop Hing, like other food and
beverage ("F&B") enterprises in China, was facing significant pressure
from a complicated external environment including but not limited
to the impact of Sino-US trade tension, escalating meat prices and
operating costs, rapid development in technology and social media,
as well as changing consumption habits of our customers in recent
years. The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic has further made that
environment extremely difficult for all market players in the industry.
Hop Hing could not stay away from the crisis. Against this backdrop,
our management team demonstrated its commitment in responding to
the exceptional circumstances and in overcoming those unprecedented
challenges.

The pandemic has severely impacted the operations of the F&B sector
in China, our customers, our colleagues, our shareholders and the
communities we serve. Our first priority was to safeguard the safety and
wellbeing of our customers and our employees by adopting stringent
hygiene and social distancing measures. Hop Hing also upheld its
corporate social responsibilities to the communities by offering free
meals to individuals and organizations fighting against the pandemic
at the forefront. On the other hand, Hop Hing implemented a number
of measures in responding to the crisis posed by the coronavirus
to our business. These included tightening expense and cash flow
control, negotiating with landlords for rental concessions, optimizing
manpower deployment and adjusting store development plan etc. The
government’s implemented policies enabled the timely containment
of the virus and stimulated the effective rebound of China's economic
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Chairman’s Statement

activities. With the initiatives taken by the management to transform its
business model, Hop Hing was able to improve its financial performance
in the second half of 2020 after being hard hit in the first half of the
year.

Every crisis creates opportunities, the pandemic’s impact on Hop Hing
is no exception. In 2020, the “dine-at-home” new norm prompted
the adjustment of Hop Hing's traditional “dine-in" operating model
of its physical stores during such difficult times. The iteration of the

|u

“single-store profit model”, which emphasizes customer experience in
physical stores and offers services that feature “online transactions with
offline experience”, was an important strategy that Hop Hing pursued.
In addition, Hop Hing's well-established delivery team was able to make
timely “non-contact” delivery of food orders to its customers with a high
level of customer satisfaction, making the delivery sales a key revenue
source for the Group in 2020. More importantly, Hop Hing have seized
opportunities to bring forward its New Retail business model for further
development. Hop Hing launched its innovative “Family Kitchen” product
line which enabled its customers to prepare high quality meals at home
in a matter of minutes. While our extensive store network remained

—?—7$¢$E
Annual Report 2020
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a key marketing platform, Hop Hing also made creative use of social
media marketing, live streaming shows and social groups of staff and

distributors to stimulate the sales of the “Family Kitchen” products.

For 2021, being mindful of its belief that digitalization is instrumental to
consolidating Hop Hing’s traditional operating model and strengthening
the New Retail business model, we will continue to invest in technology,
smart tools, social media and online platforms in order to attract new
customers and increase retention rates among existing customers. Being
an established branded catering enterprise and with a solid corporate
culture and a stable professional team, the Group will continue to uphold
its quality and product-oriented principles to provide customers with
exceptional value, while advancing its innovative New Retail business
model. In response to the anticipated post-pandemic growing demand
for the packaged and convenience food products, the Group will
continue to develop its “Family Kitchen” product line by way of dine-in,
delivery, online and offline channels. Last but not least, we will continue
to steadfastly adhere to our core value of quality and safety by strictly
controlling quality and healthiness of our food products and ensuring

the hygiene and wellbeing of our customers and employees.

Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, css, Jp, retired as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from the conclusion
of the annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2020.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my deepest thanks to Mr. Shek for his many years of dedicated service
to the Company and wish him well in his future endeavor.

The past year was an extremely difficult year for Hop Hing. | would
like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to our Board
members, management and colleagues for their enormous dedication
in overcoming the obstacles during such challenging times. | would also
wish to thank our customers, shareholders and business partners for their
continued support, trust and loyalty to the Group.

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN
Chairman

Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's turnover amounted
to RMB1,590.3 million (2019: RMB2,102.8 million). Loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the year under review was RMB81.9
million as compared with profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company of RMB104.1 million for last year. The business environment of
the food and beverage industry has been the epicenter of the pandemic
throughout the past year. While the Group had adopted a number
of cost control measures to contain its operating costs, the Group's
results were ineluctably affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition,
the impairment provisions of right-of-use assets made in respect of
underperforming restaurants extended the losses of the Group during
the year.

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year were RMB0.84 cent and
RMBO0.84 cent respectively (2019: Basic and diluted earnings per share
were RMB1.07 cents and RMB1.06 cents respectively).

“ECTEER
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On 29 June 2020, the Company made a final dividend payment of
HK0.248 cent per share for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK0.248 cent per share).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Industry Review for 2020

In 2020, the global economy faced unprecedented challenges following
the outbreak of the COVID-19. For China, the pandemic clearly had
a severe impact on its economy in the first quarter of the year -
the first time that the nation experienced a decline since it began
keeping records nearly three decades ago. Unsurprisingly, retail sales
fell dramatically during the same period. The catering industry was
among those hit hardest by the pandemic. A large number of catering
enterprises were required to suspend their operations during the first
two months of 2020, although some gradually reopened their doors
from March onwards. Consequently, the catering industry in the PRC
recorded a year-on-year decline of 16.6% in cumulative total revenue
from January to December 2020.

Although effective government policies ensured the timely containment
of the virus, and many sectors were able to start resuming operations
in March, many catering companies, especially those smaller in size,
struggled amid financial pressure and were forced to close their doors
for good. In contrast, leading catering enterprises with healthy capital
management were able to ride out the storm relatively smoothly, and
many of them actively seized opportunities from market consolidation
and underwent rapid transformation, with traditional businesses forced
to embrace a more digital approach and the adoption of a New Retail
business model in order to stay afloat.

Moreover, the stimulus policies introduced by the Chinese government
helped to jump-start the economy, which began its recovery in the
latter half year. China consequently became one of the first countries to
emerge from under the shadow of the pandemic, and many industries
gradually recovered from the trough starting in the second half of the
year.

“ECBEER q3
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Business Review for 2020

In response to the challenges posed by the outbreak of the COVID-19,
Hop Hing implemented a number of measures to protect the safety of
employees and customers, its top priority, and the Company’s wellbeing.
Correspondingly, the Group adopted stringent hygiene and social
distancing measures to safeguard staff and patrons, which also enabled
stores to remain open whenever practicable. In addition, the Group
established an array of policies and protocols pertaining to its operations,
including those aimed at encouraging cash flow management,
facilitating better rental concessions with property owners, optimizing
manpower deployment and distribution costs, etc. Furthermore, the
management took voluntary pay cuts, and non-essential expenditures
were either trimmed or cut, in order to husband financial resources
for allocation to key operations and stabilize employment. The Group
has nevertheless upheld its corporate social responsibility (CSR) and
delivered free meals to organizations and hospitals engaged in the fight
against the pandemic.

Seize opportunities from industry consolidation, strive to
press ahead with comprehensive New Retail development
model

The pandemic has brought about obstacles as well as opportunities.
The Group seized new opportunities that emerged from the industry
consolidation by adjusting its network based on the latest city
development plans, mapping out the location of its stores to ensure
service coverage through different models so as to enhance the
potential for future development.

Although 2020 was difficult, it was also bountiful. Hop Hing launched
its “Family Kitchen” product line, and began utilizing several new sales
methods to capitalize on new trend, notably social media marketing
and live streaming. These fresh initiatives brought forward our
comprehensive New Retail development model.

Actively develops/explores New Retail business model,
introduces “Family Kitchen” product line

With pandemic measures severely limiting the options available to
the public in terms of eating out at restaurants, the Group introduced
timely initiatives to take advantage of opportunities arising from the
“dine-at-home” new norm. This included the launch of the “Family Kitchen”
product line in February 2020, which enabled customers to prepare high-
quality meals at home in a matter of minutes. With substantial early
achievement, the new line has facilitated further business diversification
and accelerated the recovery of the Company’s sales.
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Business Review for 2020 (Continued)

Actively develops/explores New Retail business model,
introduces “Family Kitchen” product line (Continued)

In addition to utilizing the Group’s extensive store network as key
marketing platforms, it also made creative use of social media marketing,
including live streams for the “Family Kitchen” product line. Staff and
distributors also promoted products to their friends through social
media. These offline and online channels stimulated the sales of “Family
Kitchen” products. In 2020, the “Family Kitchen” product line, with less
than a year's operation, already generated sales of RMB120 million,
accounting for 7.6% of the Group’s total sales.

Well-established delivery business model contributed
notably during the COVID-19

Optimized in recent years, our delivery model further boosted sales
during the pandemic. Food orders are delivered with “non-contact”
service to ensure customer safety. Our well-established delivery team can
make timely delivery with top-notch service and a high level of customer
satisfaction. Consequently, the delivery business grew from representing
35.5% of the Group’s total sales in 2019 to 44.6% in 2020. Revenue from
the delivery business accounted for 49.1% and 26.0% of the total sales
of Yoshinoya and DQ respectively. In Beijing, the contribution of the
delivery business of Yoshinoya surged from 46.1% in the previous year to
55.5% in 2020, making the delivery sales one of the key revenue sources
for the Group.

BEAKENLBEZENERDERAXEHEL

RIERINAZET - NEBHE W= BRI 201971
RRERARITHNFIZE @Z:?: ET-TFA+—

A=+ —HItFERP244%ZE A R¥1,590,300,000
TT(ZZE—NF: AR #2,102,800,0007T) °

MEEERDL

Percentage of delivery sales
—EBC-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
B Overall 44.6% 35.5%

EXEmE By Main Brands

HFHX Yoshinoya 49.1% 40.1%
KEZRF Dairy Queen 26.0% 13.9%

Although the Group had incurred much efforts and adopted measures
to transform its business and extend its delivery business, the Group’s
total sales revenue was adversely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic
and decreased by 24.4% to RMB1,590.3 million (2019: RMB2,102.8 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

—ECTEEFR 15
Annual Report 2020



EIRE51sRI S i

Management Discussion and Analysis

#£ O EE(Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

—E_EFEXKEEGE)
RIEZEFLHEF  KEEENEREERER
BAl-AN BZTTFE_FTEUR ZH
B EEINKERANEE  INREEESR - AW -
ZHEDVEMRAEREZUEBREE  ERE
MRIRENEBRED - At - AEBRFANFE
REBRFRGHEHERD23.0% (ZE—LF EE
13%)  KEEFEFHBEIEHE TMH271% (=
T-NF ERIO%) - REBEBEREHE R
234% (ZZF—NF 1 K13%) °

Business Review for 2020 (Continued)

Overall sales at operating restaurants were severely and adversely
affected during the first half of 2020. Meanwhile, recovery of delivery
sales was driven by the Group's optimized delivery model from the
second quarter of 2020. However, recovery of the dine-in customer
traffic still experienced pressure due to the impact of regional
resurgences of the COVID-19 in China. The Group consequently reported
a decline in same-store sales of 23.0% (2019: increase of 1.3%) from the
Yoshinoya network and a decrease in same-store sales of 27.1% (2019:
increase of 1.9%) from the DQ network during the year. The Group’s
overall same-store sales contracted by 23.4% (2019: increase of 1.3%).

EEHERERBSL
Percentage Increase in
Same-Stores Sales

R-ZZFZZFF BRAFE  ER-—XK=F-71i
EHEHREBERAEENZEATS - THRE
an 2 5 B W AE 7R 58 B AR W A #085% e

—E-FF —T-hF

2020 2019

=i Overall -23.4% 1.3%
BEEXrEmE By Main Brands

FHX Yoshinoya -23.0% 1.3%

KEZRE Dairy Queen -27.1% 1.9%

In 2020, the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province Metropolitan Region
remained the largest market of the Group based on revenue. Sales
revenue from Yoshinoya products accounted for approximately 85% of
the Group's total revenue.

—E-REF —E-hNF
2020 2019
ARBTT HEEHEY ARETIT HHEHE®
RMB’000 % of sales RMB'000 % of sales
a. f&H[E a. By Region
ER-—RK=EFAILA Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
B i [& Metropolitan Region 1,167,975 73.4% 1,568,417 74.6%
HAprR L i [@ o Other northern areas of China® 422,295 26.6% 534,397 25.4%

1 BREE BEINEMEARATRHARE
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(1) Including Liaoning, Heilongjiang and Jilin provinces and Inner Mongolia
autonomous region
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2O EE(4Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

TECEFEKRDEE) Business Review for 2020 (Continued)
—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR Tt HEEFEN ARETT HESEE®
RMB’000 % of sales RMB'000 % of sales
b. #ZEEmE b. By Main Brands

EHXR Yoshinoya 1,350,326 84.9% 1,782,062 84.7%
KEZfGE Dairy Queen 177,337 11.2% 230,809 11.0%

BREEARIERE AEEZEISHEHE/ ) RBEE
B AROTEHRAYMRBRONEEAERE
BYMIREMRN  REBMENENHERE -
RZZEZEF+ZA=+—H r5EEREAE
10 3 A 5808 5 47 ©

To enhance resources allocation efficiency, the Group gradually closed down
stores of minor brands. New restaurant openings were slowed down for
the Group to exercise better control of expenditures and maintain a healthy
balance sheet and strong cash position. As of 31 December 2020, the Group
together with its joint venture, had 580 stores in operation.

R+=—B=+—8
As at 31 December
—E-SE —E-hF
2020 2019
FHX Yoshinoya
ER-—R=EAILAE Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
e i [& Metropolitan Region 256 250
HAbrr B4 @0 Other northern areas of China” 127 130
AEEY Henan province? 7 5
390 385
KEE Dairy Queen
ER—RZFAILA Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
i Metropolitan Region 142 138
HAabrr B i@ Other northern areas of China® 47 51
189 189
Hith Others
EmR—RK=EFTILAE Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
e Metropolitan Region 1 21
B AL Tt [E o Other northern areas of China” - 2
1 23
HaEt Total 580 597
0 PREEE BERIKTMEAUARATEEAR ) Including Liaoning, Heilongjiang and Jilin provinces and Inner Mongolia
autonomous region
2 HEELEESE (2)  Operated by Joint Venture

—ECTEEFR 17
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#£ O EE(Z) BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

—E-EEEBERE(E)
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Business Review for 2020 (Continued)

Due to the pandemic’s adverse impact during the year under review,
the Group undertook a number of price-driven promotion activities
and digital campaigns to stimulate sales and promote new products,
especially to bolster the “Family Kitchen” product line and speed up the
recovery of its sales in the second half of 2020. Despite these efforts,

EREE594%  R-ZF—NFTHE34EED I - gross profit in 2020 was adversely impacted and a gross profit margin of
59.4% has been recorded with a decline of 3.4 percentage points when
compared with the 2019 level.

—E-EF —E-hF
2020 2019
E M= Gross Profit Margin 59.4% 62.8%

FA - BREH0ERFESHNTE  KAEEE
FMEZEKARZEGERE -  AEEBERELEEK
REBHE BREELCANEKEE  HEXHEHE
SERULKEZERBEARETERREER - B
b AEBEEKARBBEFANER TR BE
TEEXATNBETHEFEEWRARKIELL &
ERANEHEREAD L REFKEBRM LT -

During the year, the Group implemented tight cost control measures
to cope with the impact from the COVID-19. The Group proactively
enhanced operating cost structure realignment including optimizing
manpower deployment, negotiating with landlords for rental
concessions, communicating with authorities for the reduction and
exemption of social insurance premiums. The operating costs of the
Group therefore went down during the year under review. Since certain
operating costs are fixed and not proportionate to sales revenue,
operating costs as a percentage of sales recorded increases compared
to last year'’s level.

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T GHEH»Y AR®ETT HHEHBEE®
RMB’000 % of sales RMB'000 % of sales
HERDHER Selling and distribution expenses
AT A Labour costs 237,801 15.0% 310,512 14.8%
FMEMA  FHEEE Rental expenses, depreciation of
& MR & AR A right-of-use assets and finance costs* 217,991 13.7% 256,709 12.2%
Y% - R E KR TE* Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment*® 84,944 5.3% 86,595 4.1%
HAbse il Other operating expenses 278,393 17.5% 340,468 16.2%
* HESHEANTERREXNAEEB K AR * Depreciation and finance costs relating to leases have been grouped

B UBEFTHRASEEBASAENMAXE
w3
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with rental expenses for better understanding of the Group's total
rental-related expenses
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Equity
The number of issued shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company as at 31
December 2020 was 10,070,431,786 (31 December 2019: 10,070,431,786).

Share Option

As at 1 January 2020, the Company had 948,513,000 outstanding share
options. During the year, 130,914,000 share options were lapsed. No
share option was granted nor exercised during the year. 72,500,000 share
options were granted to employee in 2019, the fair value of which was
considered not material.

Liquidity and gearing

The Group's gearing ratio (expressed as a percentage of interest-bearing
bank loans over equity attributable to equity holders of the Company)
as at 31 December 2020 was nil (31 December 2019: nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded cash and cash equivalents
of RMB402.6 million (2019: RMB252.9 million), deposit certificates of
RMB60.0 million (2019: RMB60.0 million) and other financial assets of
RMB46.1 million (2019: RMB243.0 million).

The Group’s finance costs for the year was RMB48.0 million (2019:
RMB41.5 million), which consisted of interest on lease liabilities of
RMB47.7 million (2019: RMB41.0 million), and other finance costs totaling
RMBO0.3 million (2019: RMBO.5 million).

The Group’s funding policy is to finance its business operations with
internally generated cash and bank facilities. The Group's bank facilities
are available in both Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group
continues to adhere to the policy of hedging foreign currency liabilities
with foreign currency assets.

“ECTEER 19
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¥ B it 55 REMUNERATION POLICIES

BI¥FMESBERBML AEBEEARR
BEZHESMBBIET - AEETMRHEEMET
B BIEEERR  FEEGSERE . QES -
BREEKBNDEBTAERKEBEI - A5EEER
EEFAESNHEAEBEBERRAEKARE
EM %) B ARK389600000TT(ZE—HF AR
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RREKFEPTMANBEACGE LWHRAUZE
&)

Staff remuneration packages consist of salary and discretionary bonuses
which are determined with reference to market conditions and the
performance of the Group and the individual concerned. The Group also
provides other staff benefits including medical insurance, continuing
education allowances, provident funds, share options and share awards
to eligible staff. The total remuneration paid to employees (including
pension costs and remuneration to the Directors) of the Group during
the year under review was RMB389.6 million (2019: RMB487.6 million). As
at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 7400 full-time and
temporary employees (31 December 2019: approximately 8,600).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board resolved to grant
share awards in respect of 48,293,487 shares to selected participants
who were not a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, nor an associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
any of them.

g EE E OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

RE D MERZFIBHNH T4 -

Ik SR & & CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

AEEBR-_T_TFF+_A=+—HUEREER
ZERSARAE-

% E 1K 1§ PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the operating segment information are set out in Note 4.

The Group had no material contingent liability outstanding as at 31
December 2020.

AEBR_Z_ZF+_RA=+—HUEEEK

o

k]

The Group had no pledge of assets as at 31 December 2020.

BAKER L EN BT REE 27 MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

7435 0 7 L 47 9 3 £ ) B A o
ARSBEAAEE -

The Group did not make any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or affiliated companies during the year under review.

HEHAIRIEE1E EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

BAFHRMBEBEFRIN REEAREARAFHA
M WEBAERBAESR-

20 AREEZRERAT
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Save for the events disclosed in this Annual Report, no material events
occurred after the end of the reporting period and up to the date of
this Annual Report.
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Employees

The management is fully aware that human resources are crucial to
the continued success of the Group. The Group has provided staff
with different kinds of benefit, including annual and other paid leaves,
medical insurance, continuing education allowances and provident
funds. For the personal development of our employees, they have been
provided with in-house training and are encouraged to attend external
relevant courses. The Group has also set up various incentive schemes,
including performance related bonuses, share award scheme and share
option scheme, to motivate and reward well-performed employees. In
addition, the incentive schemes of the Group have been designed to
give the relevant staff a sense of ownership and let them share the
results of the efforts that they have contributed.

Details of our remuneration policies have been set out in the
“Remuneration Policies” section in this Management Discussion and
Analysis.

Customers

Being a QSR service provider, we have customers coming from different
social classes, regions and districts. It is an on-going exercise for us
to understand the needs and appetite of our customers. The primary
objective of our product development team is to launch new and
tasty products to satisfy the taste buds of our customers. For the
convenience of our customers, we have set up call centres, cooperated
with platform service providers and launched website ordering system
for our customers to place their orders wherever they are. Apart from
quality food, the Group has been continuously upgrading the renovation
of its stores so as to give our customers a feeling of being home. Our
customers also have various channels, including WeChat, telephone
hotline and our customer relationship management (CRM) system, to
let us know which areas of services we could further strengthen and
understand our customers’ consuming habit. The satisfaction of our
customers is always one of our key performance indicators.

SECBEER 9
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FERE(Z) KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Continued)

HEmS

RmiE HRAREIFEANERRBZ— -
AEEETERER T ERE TRBONEEEE
A ZEARERRMANRBEKE TR AZEF
HEEHRER  ERcMOEELE &R &
BN MBRENRBE ERSEHHAED
HEPMBEHEFTRBOTEZR > EEHZEH
FER B L MBI EERAH - AEBE MR
BEBLEEERE R RN EHEMHEE S EM
ETRD  ARFBEHHENRAIMBNERE
TER BANEEXEUNEZLEERXRFE
(ERMIDERHERRERER - LBBHH
EREAEE HMEYERE ERERHME -

Suppliers

Food safety is one of the most important areas that the Group has always
put emphasis on. The Group has built a stringent internal control system
in the selection of suppliers. The system requires our procurement team
to assess the potential suppliers from different perspectives, including
their track records, experience, production ability, financial strength and
reputation. Newly selected suppliers will be tested with orders of smaller
size before they are placed with regular size orders. As an on-going exercise
to monitor the quality of food and material supplies, the procurement team
and production team of the Group would meet and visit our suppliers on
regular and irregular basis. Our teams may give advices to our suppliers on
ways to further improve their production efficiency and standard, where
appropriate. This helps to establish a mutual trust and create a win-win
situation for both our suppliers and the Group.

BREBERH1T1E R ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

AEBEARTEIRRRE KA RXEER
REEE - RAPBRNBEHEENRZBTHD
BRBA FEREERENTE - RATFEX
HEDERRETERRERIITEE XHEA
AR AR E S B e — LD & AT AT R - 3R
19 %9 3R (R &9 56 B 3 P2 15 /915014001 3R 45 & 12

RBEARBBRINER -

BRAASERATREERNRE R & &0
EZEH  BREAFHREQE0EFAEANRE

HERERKRSE

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving the environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of materials. We also require our suppliers to
operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental regulations
and rules and possess all necessary permission and approval from the
relevant regulators. Our commitment in environmental protection can
be demonstrated by the 1SO14001 Environmental Management System
certification obtained.

For further information about the environmental and social performance
of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the Environmental,
Social, and Governance Report set out on pages 29 to 50 of this Annual
Report.

#E <F 5% £ 1 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
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The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its securities
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Hence, the Company
is subject to the applicable laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and Hong Kong. The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and therefore have to comply with
the relevant PRC laws and regulations. The management is not aware of
any non-compliance of any of the above relevant laws and regulations
by the Group that would have a significant impact on the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this report.
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The management of the Group reviewed all aspects of the Group's
corporate strategies, including those relating to the market, operation
and finance, from time to time. Below are the principal risks and
uncertainties that the Group faces and the measures that the
management has taken to manage such risks and uncertainties.

Franchise-related Risks

Risks

The Group’s franchise business in the PRC is subject to the terms of the
franchise agreements with the related franchisors. The Group's operation
and business will be materially and adversely affected in the event that
any or all of the franchise agreements are terminated or could not be
renewed.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group's major franchise agreements for its existing franchise
regions have remaining terms (including automatically renewable terms
under the relevant franchise agreements) of no less than approximately
10 years in general. The Group has assigned staff to observe the
requirements under the relevant franchise agreements. In addition,
the Group has constant dialogues and maintained good business
relationships with the relevant franchisors.

Risk of Outbreak of Food-borne Diseases

Risks

As a catering service provider, the Group has to rely on its suppliers for
food ingredients. In the event that there is any outbreak of food-borne
diseases, the supply of food ingredients of the Group may be affected.

Measures to manage the risks

It is the Group's policy that there should be more than one supplier,
preferably from different districts or regions, for all the major and key
food ingredients. In addition, the Group maintains adequate stock for
its food ingredients so as to allow time to source new suppliers in
case suppliers from one specific region are affected by any outbreak of
food-borne diseases.

Food Contamination Risk

Risks

The Group's business is susceptible to the risk of food contamination. In
the event that there is food contamination in the Group and the instance
is reported in the media, the business of the Group would be negatively
affected.

“ECBREER 23
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FERMBETHEBRAEZEZ(Z) PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
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Food Contamination Risk (Continued)

Measures to manage the risks

Food safety is of utmost importance to a catering service provider.
The Group has stringent internal control in place in identifying and
monitoring food ingredient suppliers on a continual basis. There are
also internal food safety and hygiene policies and standard for the food
handling staff to follow. The Group also has quality control teams to
inspect its stores and distribution centres on a regular and rotational
basis. Identified weaknesses will be reported and corrected as soon as
possible.

Exchange Control Risks

Risks

As the Group's business and operation are basically in the PRC, the
revenue and expenses are principally denominated in Renminbi.
Payments of expenses and dividends in Hong Kong have to depend
on dividends and other income and fund remittances from the Group’s
PRC operating companies. In case there are any restrictions of fund
remittance by the relevant PRC government authorities in future, the
ability of the Group to settle its Hong Kong debts and payables and
declare dividends in Hong Kong will be adversely affected.

Measures to manage the risks

The Group has retained funds in Hong Kong to meet the payment needs
in Hong Kong within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the Group
has maintained good relationship with banking institutions in Hong
Kong which have provided the Group with banking facilities to meet the
cash needs of the Group’s Hong Kong head office, where necessary.

PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risks

Risks

The Group's business operations are conducted in the PRC and all of
its sales are made in the PRC. The Group's business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects are therefore significantly affected
by economic, political and legal developments in the PRC. The PRC
economy differs from the economies of most developed countries in
many respects, including the degree of government involvement, the
level of development, the growth rate and the allocation of resources.
The PRC government may implement various measures to encourage
economic growth and guide the allocation of resources. Some of these
measures may benefit the overall PRC economy, but may also have a
negative effect on the Group.
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PRC Economic, Political and Legal Risks
(Continued)

Measures to manage the risks

Business operations are always subject to the laws and regulations and
the ups and downs of the economy of the places where they are in.
Almost all of the Group’s staff engaged in the Group's PRC business
operations are PRC nationals who are familiar with the economic and
political environment in the PRC. In addition, the Group has a designated
team of staff responsible for monitoring the economic, social and
political development in the PRC with an aim to enable the Group to
prepare itself and make necessary adjustments to its business strategies
ahead as far as possible. Furthermore, the management would not rule
out any possibility of considering opportunities to invest in non-PRC
businesses that would bring steady long-term growth to the Group to
diversify the concentration risks.
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F&B industry development trend

In light of the different spending scenarios and innovative models,
leaders in the F&B industry have started to map out their second growth
driver.

In 2019, chain stores accounted for a share of just 10.3% of China’s F&B
industry. While that percentage has been rising, when compared with
the US' figure of 54.3% in 2019, it becomes clear that there remains a lot
of room for expansion. Following the outbreak of the COVID-19, the pace
of growth of chain stores exceeded that of individual stores. The former
demonstrated stronger resilience, resulting from better management,
more capital support and the positive branding impacts of large chain
store groups, which together enabled them to fight off the COVID-19's
adverse effects and survive in the increasingly tough market. Many small
companies closed down, enabling chain stores to gain access to better
store locations which, in turn, improved the quality of newly opened
stores.
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AREKEEEI(Z) FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Continued)
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F&B industry development trend (Continued)

Seize opportunities arising from digitization beyond the
CoVID-19

Driven by rising demand beyond the pandemic, an increasing number
of opportunities are emerging for the convenience food business. These
types of products have had to meet enormous customer demand during
the pandemic, and sales have increased substantially as the dining habits
of consumers have been forced to change considerably. This has led to
the acceleration of its market penetration, and in the long term, these
changes in consumer habits and demands will facilitate the further
development of convenience food products.

The catering industry has begun to pay attention to different
consumption scenarios and is adjusting business models accordingly,
a key development which has driven the industry’s diversification.
Restaurants and retailers have created unlimited imaginary space for the
industry’s further development.

Digitalized companies with delivery service capabilities have rebounded
relatively quickly following the COVID-19 outbreak, accelerating a
change in consumption patterns from offline to online. This change has
prompted catering enterprises to promptly enhance their digitization
capabilities. It has also become clear that enterprises need to utilize
online data in order to achieve gains in integrated online-offline
marketing initiatives.

Digitization also helps catering companies to lower costs and raise
efficiency throughout the entire business chain. This involves the
addition of smart facilities, such as proprietary mini-programs, utilizing
delivery and cooking robots to standardize production, and cloud
services integration.

Looking ahead, the catering industry will focus primarily on increasing
chained operation, fueling supply chain expansion, the use of New Retail
elements and online-offline integration becoming more widespread.
With the pandemic yet to be fully controlled and with lingering
economic uncertainty, catering operators will have to monitor market
dynamics closely and react accordingly.
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AREKEEEI(Z) FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Continued)
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Future development strategies

The “New Retail Model”

The Group began working on its innovative New Retail business model
in 2019, and after undertaking comprehensive research over the year, it
was launched in 2020. Consequently, the Group has the ability to seize
the opportunities brought about by the industry’s transformation during
the COVID-19 pandemic and fully leverage its technology capabilities in
order to further enhance its New Retail business model.

The launch of the “Family Kitchen” product line in 2020 has
demonstrated Hop Hing's strengths in innovation. The Group will
continue to utilize its New Retail Model for its packaged food products
by way of dine-in, delivery, online and offline channels, which constitute
the core competitive strengths of the New Retail model.

To become an innovative catering enterprise that truly embraces the “New
Retail Model”, Hop Hing will continue to capitalize on various smart tools
such as proprietary mini-program, self-service ordering machines, apps and
an array of marketing initiatives, all with the aim of providing an excellent
user experience for our customers. The Group will keep capitalizing on
online platforms such as Wechat, Weibo, JD.com, Kuaishou, and Douyin to
attract new business traffic. The Group is also devoted to expanding its
private domain traffic pool by attracting new customers and increasing the
retention rates among existing consumers. These digitization strategies will
be instrumental to consolidating the Group’s traditional operating model
and strengthening the New Retail business model.

In the post-pandemic era, consumers’ consumption habits are changing
rapidly. Therefore, traditional catering enterprises will not only be
confronted with soaring rents, labor, and food costs, and third-party
delivery platform service fees, all of which will squeeze their profits,
but they will also have to grapple with the thornier issue of a declining
number of dine-in customers. Therefore, the iteration of the “single-store
profit model”, which includes emphasizing customer experience in
physical stores and offering services that feature “online transactions
with offline experience”, is of paramount importance. In order to
enhance customers’ dining experience, the Group plans to add some
innovative new features in stores, such as hotpot zone, children’s play
areas, study room and reading corner. In addition, the Group will actively
promote “value-for-money” hotpot series to create a new consumption
scenario satisfying the strong consumption demand of mid-to-low price
hotpot menus in the PRC. With the compounded sales model — “catering
income + New Retail income + online and offline integration”, Hop
Hing will continue to introduce a variety of adjustments with an aim to
optimize each store’s profitability.
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FUTURE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT PLAN (Continued)

Future development strategies (Continued)

The “New Retail Model” (Continued)

Being an established branded catering enterprise and with a solid
corporate culture and a stable professional team, the Group will continue
to adopt prudent risk management and health and hygiene measures,
enabling it to continue to offer healthy and safe food to consumers.

Looking ahead, while it is expected that the impact of the pandemic
will continue for some time in the near future, the Group will continue
to reinforce its traditional operating model, accelerate the adoption of
digitization across its operations, enhance the “New Retail” business
model, and deepen its cooperation with franchisors and existing
business partners. These endeavors are all aimed at elevating Hop Hing’s
stature to that of the leading digitalized catering enterprise in China.
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On behalf of the Group, | would like to thank all of our customers,
suppliers, business associates and bankers for their unwavering support. |
wish to also express my gratitude to members of our management team
and staff for their diligence and perseverance during the past year.

On Behalf of the Board

Hung Ming Kei, Marvin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG") initiatives,
plans and performances of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”,
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or "we”) and

The Group prepared the ESG Report according to the four major
principles: materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency as required
by the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Reporting Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Group publishes its ESG Report annually to
disclose its performance on ESG, on the basis of which the Group will
make continued improvement to the management of environmental,
social and governance aspects.

The ESG Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach regarding
its ESG issues. The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees and sets
ESG strategy for the Group. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
mechanisms. To develop a systematic management approach for ESG
issues, the Group has set up a working group with designated personnel
from various departments to manage the Group's ESG matters. The
working group is responsible for collecting relevant information on
the ESG aspects for the preparation of the ESG Report. It periodically
reports to the Board, assists in identifying and assessing the Group's
ESG risk, and evaluates the implementation and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control system. It also examines and reviews the Group's
ESG performance against the Group's ESG-related goals and targets,
including environmental, labour practices, and other ESG aspects.

Reporting Framework
This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide.

Information relating to the Group's corporate governance practices has
been set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 51 to 63 of
this annual report.

Reporting Scope

This ESG report generally covers the Group’s stores and subsidiaries in
the Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group will continue to access
the major ESG aspects of different businesses and extend the scope of
disclosures when and where applicable.
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Reporting Period

The ESG Report specifies the Group's ESG performance, challenges and
measures being taken during the financial year from 1 January 2020 to
31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period” or “FY2020").

Identification and Communication with
Stakeholders

The Group has a diverse mix of stakeholders of which many of them are
customers and employees. We have identified crucial stakeholders to the
Group, including customers, employees, governments, shareholders and
investors, suppliers, community organisations, business associations and
media, and collected their comments through different channels, such
as documents of policy, questionnaires, and service hotlines.

In preparing this ESG Report and to understand the expectation of
different stakeholders, the Group has maintained close communication
with stakeholders through different communication channels including
face-to-face communication, telephone interviews, questionnaires and
on-site visits. This ensures we have communicated with our stakeholders
fairly so that the content disclosed in the ESG Report reflects the Group's
current performance, and the Group's future policies and guidelines
could be developed therefrom.
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FOERBNBEE

Identification and Communication with
Stakeholders (Continued)

FHE BERE Bx ML
Stakeholders Communication Channels Concerns/Expectations
BEERRER EEEe g3 IR
Investors and shareholders Board meetings Financial results
WS aRgE
Financial reports Compliant operations
BEEAS PSESYNGE- S IVNCTE-E |

BE

Customers

8T
Employees

e
Suppliers

M EBUF AR R e
Community, non-governmental
organizations, and media

Circulars and announcements
NAEBE - AR R

Corporate emails, hotlines and website
HEEERRREGE

Meetings with investors and shareholders

BEERBHLO AL

Customer service center and hotline
BEREERADT

Customer satisfaction survey
HEBB

Direct communication
HRZERETA

Social media platforms

BETEBERE

Employee communication meetings
AR T 0 B o B A8

Internal publications and intranet
BETERM

Employee suggestion boxes
BIES

Employees’ activities

N

Bulletin board

HEHEESRLEY

Suppliers’ management meetings and events

EHFHHEERRR

Regular assessment of suppliers’ performance

B ER
Site visits

NCIEEN

Corporate website

nNE

Announcements

3

Interview
HREETA

Social media platforms
B HegREARE
ESG reports

Announcement of latest corporate information in a

timely manner
NEAFEER
Corporate sustainability
FBRAE RBBRE

Transparent and efficient communication

BITEMmRREEE

Fulfill product and service responsibilities
BEERN LG RE

Customer information and privacy protection
RmEZE
Food safety

HE T (R &

Protection of rights

i K48 N
Remuneration and benefits
BEER

Career development
BEAEZE

Health and safety
TERE

Equal opportunities

RMEEERESR

Business ethics and credibility
RS

Fair competition

BFAK

Comply with contracts

5E

Mutual benefits

EEgad

Giving back to society
RIBRE
Environmental protection
EMEHE

Transparency of information
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BRRENTERE

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’
ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS

Materiality Assessment

The Group’s management and staff in major functions have involved
in the preparation of the ESG Report. They have assisted the Group to
review its operations, identify key ESG issues, and assess the importance
of those relevant matters to our business and stakeholders. The Group
has compiled a survey in accordance with the identified material ESG
issues to collect information from relevant departments, business units,
and stakeholders of the Group. The following matrix is a summary of

the Group's material ESG issues.

EEMERE
Materiality Matrix

- ° e

22 \%Gé

ﬁt

&
Lo - BRRERMEFENEERE
LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

EERE Material Topics
1. BERPEM 1. Air Emissions
2. J5IKERIE 2. Sewage Disposal
3. BEYER 3. Waste Management
4. BIRER 4. Resources Management
5 KERER 5. Water Resources Management
6. BEMEEZEA 6. Use of Packaging Material
7 ENEREEEE 7. Indoor Air Quality Management
8. EEEHR 8. Employment Practices
9. BERLEER 9. Health and Safety Management
0. BRERE 10. Development and Training
N BEETR®BELST 11, Prevent Child Labour and Forced Labour
12, HERE R 12. Supply Chain Management
3. MRER 13.  Logistic Management
4. Rm& % 14, Food Safety
15 EER® 15.  Customer Service
6. BRALBERE 16.  Customer Privacy Protection
7. RES 17. Anti-corruption
18 ARt EME 18.  Corporate Social Responsibility

32 SEEEZERERAT
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Materiality Assessment (Continued)

Material Topics (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group established appropriate and
effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG
issues disclosed contents comply with the requirements of the ESG
Reporting Guide.

Environmental Protection

The Group has been persistent in carrying out its business with strict
adherence to its motto — “Conscientious about Quality”. In addition
to food quality, we also pay attention to the impact of our daily
operational activities on the environment. The Group has formulated
an environmental management system and the Group is the first
ISO14001 certified entity among all peers in the food and beverage
industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") to comply with
local environmental laws and define the environmental protection
responsibility of each reporting unit.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with environmental-related laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong
Kong including but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law
of the People's Republic of China, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution of
Solid Wastes, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Air Pollution
Control, the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Air
Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong, Waste Disposal Ordinance of
Hong Kong, and Water Pollution Control Ordinance of Hong Kong that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Emissions
Air Emissions
As a QSR chain operator, we strive to minimise the air emissions
generated during the course of operation. The Group is aware that
the consumption of fuel during the cooking process will produce air
pollutants to the environment, therefore we have reacted by installing
electrical cooking equipment in order to minimize such pollution.
Besides, to minimize the impact of smoke resulted from our operation
on the surrounding environment, the Group strictly monitors the
efficiency of the smoke exhaust equipment installed at our restaurants.
Smoke purification devices that are designed to tackle particulate
matter, cooking fume, non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC) with national
standards are installed and upgraded periodically. To maximize the
service life of these devices, our Operation Department has devised
a set of servicing and maintenance plans, including cleaning the
smoke purification devices regularly, arranging regular maintenance
and conducting cleaning reports. Staff at stores are trained to carry
out maintenance of these devices from time to time. With the above
measures and initiatives, the Group considers that air emissions
generated were of an insignificant level during the Reporting Period.
“ECTEER 33
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Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Sewage Discharge

During daily operation, the Group generates domestic sewage mainly
in the course of food preparation and cleaning. The sewage generated
will first be treated in the subsurface sewage treatment system, then
discharged to the urban sewage pipe network. The Group rigorously
monitors the usage and disposal of the sewage and complies with
relevant laws and regulations to meet local government sewage
discharge standards.

Since the Group’s sewage is discharged through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification plant, our
sewage discharged is considered as the water consumed. Hence, the
performance of sewage discharged will be disclosed in the section
headed “Water Resources Management”

Waste Management

All of our stores, food processing centres and offices generate different
types of wastes during daily operations, such wastes can be broadly
classified into hazardous waste, recyclable waste, non-recyclable waste
and processed meat waste.

The production, transit and disposal process of different materials may
have various degrees of impact on the environment. To comply with
relevant laws and regulations and mitigate the environmental impacts
produced by the Group's operations, the Group tries its best to dispose
of different types of wastes at different operating areas properly. In this
way, we do not only increase the recycling rate but also minimize the
hygienic problems brought by our wastes.

The Group handles other wastes carefully and recycles any useful
materials wherever possible. The food processing centre of the Group
handles a lot of food each day. When it comes to meat, the Group
controls finished products rigorously so as to minimize the generation of
debris and wastage. In addition to food wastes, the Group also collects
statistical data and monitors the production of wastes in the stores.
We collect and classify wastes into recyclable waste and non-recyclable
waste, and passed them to professional third parties waste handlers
for handling. The Group also collects and centralizes reusable parts,
plastic containers, cartons, packaging paper and paper to minimize the
production of wastes. During the Reporting Period, the Group recycled
approximately 380 kg of paper in each store on average.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Waste Management (Continued)

Recycling operators visit the stores daily to ensure that the recycling
process complies with the environmental protection and hygiene control
requirements. Carton and waste oil are collected by the designated staff
in stores to increase the recycling rate. According to the requirements
of the State Food and Drug Administration, stores are required to post

nou

posters with slogans like “Saving is Honor”, “Do not Waste” to minimize
waste production which results in environmental pollution. The food
processing systems in stores are reviewed regularly to reduce wastage
during food processing. Through the adoption of these measures,
employees’ awareness of waste management has increased. During the
Reporting Period, the Group disposed of approximately 2,914 tonnes of
non-hazardous wastes, and the total non-hazardous wastes intensity was

approximately 2 tonnes per million RMB revenue.

During the operations, the Group only produces a limited amount
of fluorescent lamp and accumulator wastes that are categorized as
hazardous wastes by the local government. Yet, all hazardous wastes
are collected by designated persons at designated places so as to avoid
mishandling by other staff, which may cause environmental pollution
and endanger health.

AEEEREZEEVEERAME: Summary of the Group’s non-hazardous waste disposal performance:
BEBEEYER Non-hazardous waste types

RS 2,120188 Food residue 2,120 tonnes
&% JH 5641 Waste cooking oil 564 tonnes
JE& 4 3SNAFT Paper waste' 311 kg
&8 IR ) A BE 4 381 Paper waste recycled' 381 kg
& B R R 862 T Metal waste' 86 kg
M &t Note

. REHFRESHNTHEEE Hif®
TERBRREEBERIANEHHE -

1. The disposal figure represents the store average disposal amount which
was derived from dividing the total disposal amount by the number of
stores.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)
Emissions (Continued)

Carbon Audit

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group tries its best to minimize
the environmental impact of its operations and in particular spares no
effort in reducing its carbon footprint. For this purpose, the Group has
understood its carbon emission patterns and mapped out pertinent
improvement measures.

For stores’ operation, carbon emissions mainly come from natural gas
consumption by stove and electricity consumption by other cookers and
lights. After detailed analysis of the carbon emission data, the Group
put in place different emission reduction measures and employees’
awareness on Group's Greenhouse Gas (“GHG") emissions have
increased.

During the Reporting Period, the increase in GHG emissions intensity
was mainly due to the decrease in revenue when compared to FY2019
which was mainly due to the outbreak of COVID-19

REBRERBHMERERE: Summary of the GHG emissions performance:

B Indicator'

BEREHEWRAE 542018 — & Lk E & Total Greenhouse Gas emissions 54,291 tCOe

B E RPN %ﬁr‘ A F R EE WA Greenhouse Gas emissions intensity? 34 tCO,e/Revenue
(ARBBETT) (Million RMB)

M &t Notes

1. BERBHENEBUA_S(REERT  WER 1. GHG emissions data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent
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and based on, including but not limited to, The Greenhouse Gas Protocol:
A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development; How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix II: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited; Global Warming Potential Values from the IPCC Fifth
Assessment Report, 2014 (AR5); General principles for calculation of
total production energy consumption (GB/T 2589-2008); and the latest
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis.

2. During FY2020, the Group's total revenue is RMB1,590 million. This data
has also been used for calculating other intensity data.



RERE(E)

ﬁkhﬁ

BEIRE FE

BERERE M EEN B BAEEE - AEEEH T
BIRERBUR - Bl B R A RAIIESE - REE
BEREEERHENOEREE TR TEERER
BiZ NEEIAEE - AEEEHI5T— K PIE0RE
B RS EEHET WEDBIZ - AEME
R ARREASEHERSERERE
MERE  =ARXGSHENNER  SEHBE
BEHABHR ERRERAETEEFTNGER
EEBRAHA ARAGNEESSHEEZERRE
WEBZERERAL - RIFHERIN  RESIESR

AL RRARLS  ISEHREZFTERABETR
DEMNER - R BERERRESRBETM
ERHRBABMER - AEETEEFEMAER

M amRENSERR AEBEESES
MBARGFEIRABLD - KBEEEEEEEAIE
T BMSIEHEEMGERBS T I EE
BMRERE  MiEm TEENEIR AIE:EA

IKE R E HE
REBEEFEAEENKER - EEHHEES
E%ﬁ BHRBERRY AR Eﬁﬁgﬁxk
Y EFERARK - NEEB T EHENAKE
gi%ﬁtii@Aﬁﬁziﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂig
B ARSARARSBREANKER W ARBK
ERBEHEZNRDETHHEI M RIRHKE
B o MHERBERERRERKNREAZ — -
I AR e THIERRERETE BB KRG ET
AEREAREEE - BTRIBKE  BIKE
RMEENAERNEEEEREZ— -

R-E_TERRFEAN  AEEERBSER
i EY K E RT3 I R B BT e

RIR - HEKREBSHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Resources Consumption

Energy Management

Energy consumption is closely related to carbon emissions. The Group
has developed related energy policies to outline the framework for the
efficient use of energy. The Group reviews the emission data of its stores
by periods every year and sets targets for the energy consumption to
monitor the power consumption. A set of energy-saving measures has
been put into effect at all stores to meet their targets. To consume
energy efficiently, the Company has implemented a start and shut-down
schedule for different kinds of energy-consuming equipment of the
stores, such as lights and air-conditioners, which will be followed
by the stores. When actual consumption deviates from our planned
consumption significantly, the Operation Department of the Company
would investigate the causes of such deviation and make adjustments
where necessary. In addition to the schedule, our stores use zoned
lighting systems which allow the stores to power on or off in different
zones as needed. Besides, cooking devices will also be switched on
by reference to customer traffic. The Group also use equipment with
higher energy efficiency to save energy as far as possible. The Group
has replaced the lighting systems at stores with LED. By carrying out a
series of energy-saving measures, our stores have been able to maximize
energy efficiency and minimize carbon footprint and our employees’
awareness on energy management has also increased.

Water Resources Management

The Group uses our precious water resources with great care. During
daily operations, stores use water for washing raw materials, preparation
of food, and cleaning the stores. The Group keeps a close eye on
water consumption by stores. Based on water consumption in the
previous year, the Operation Department develops an annual plan at
the beginning of each year. They are responsible to check the water
consumption at the end of each month, analyze the process which
has high unexpected usage of water and come up with improvement
measures. Malfunction equipment is usually one of the causes of
wastage of water. Hence, the Company will carry out regular checks
and timely repair of water-consuming equipment according to the
maintenance plan. To reduce water consumption, water-saving is one of
our important considerations when we purchase new equipment.

During FY2020, the Group did not encounter any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for its purpose.
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Environmental Protection (Continued)
Resources Consumption (Continued)

Use of Packaging Materials

The Group tries to achieve a high level of sustainability via responsible
procurement and treatment of its packaging materials through the use
of 3Rs (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle). We endeavour to work with green
sustainable suppliers who will assess the impact of the environment
during their product manufacturing and the end of their product life
cycle and focus on producing packaging products that are recyclable,
compostable/biodegradable and/or sustainably manufactured.

During the Reporting Period, the increase in the intensities of total
energy consumption and water consumption when compared to FY2019
were mainly due to the decrease in revenue resulting from the outbreak
of COVID-19, while the increase in the total packaging material was
mainly due to the increase in protection of handling delivery.

Summary of the Group’s uses of resources performance:

HERRHEE 1,343k FL B
KAR 1,145JK FL B
R 166K FL B
2 329K B B

R R R OH 55,0359k FL B
BIERE 55,035JK FL B

ERHEAE 56,3783k FL B

EEHBHARE 35JK R RS A

(ARBHET

BXxE 35546237 J7 3K

AXKERE 22431 F 3K IR

(ANREBET)
BEMEDEE 2,831
BEMEDEERE 208 WA
(ARBHET

Direct energy consumption 1,343 MWh
Natural gas 1,145 MWh
Towngas 166 MWh
Gasoline 32 MWh

Indirect energy consumption 55,035 MWh
Electricity consumption 55,035 MWh

Total energy consumption 56,378 MWh

Total energy consumption 35 MWh/Revenue
intensity (Million RMB)

Water consumption 355462 m’

Water consumption intensity 224 m’/Revenue

(Million RMB)

Packaging material consumption
Packaging material consumption
intensity

2,831 tonnes
2 tonnes/Revenue
(Million RMB)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Protection (Continued)
Resources Consumption (Continued)

Indoor Air Quality

The Group heavily emphasizes indoor air quality, and the Group has
strict control over air quality management. We prohibit anyone from
smoking in the kitchen and dining areas. Any person who is found to
have violated such rule will be subjected to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination of employment. Besides, the Group has installed
exhaust emission systems, including mechanical ventilation systems and
oil fume exhaust filters in all stores. This helps to minimize the oil fume
emissions and odour nuisance arising from our restaurant operations.
Apart from these measures, the Group will also conduct regular cleaning
of the air conditioning systems to ensure a high level of indoor air quality
is provided for both employees and customers.

Care for Employees

Due to the nature of the food and beverage industry, employees closely
interact with our customers. Our employees play an important role in
driving our business growth and shaping our company image. Hence,
the Group treasures every talent and is eager to provide the best working
environment and create opportunities for self-development for every
employee and grow with them.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with employment and labour standard-related laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong including but not limited to the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong that would have a significant impact to the Group.

Employment Practices

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group is aware that employees are the cornerstone of the
Company’s business and future development and therefore attract
and retain talents by providing them with people-oriented employee
benefits and policies. The policies in relation to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, other benefits and welfare are
specified in the “Employee Handbook” and the “Human Resources
Policy”. The Group has also made clear provisions of the rights and
obligations imposed on the employees in the handbook and the
policies, including but not limited to the working hours and rest periods
of employees.

—ECEFER 39
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment Practices (Continued)

Prevent Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group purchases social insurance for our employees as required
by the local government where we operate. Our employees also enjoy
statutory holidays, including breastfeeding leave and paternity leave for
male employees. Moreover, the Group also provides a wide range of
other benefits to retain the employees, such as discounted meals, special
allowances for those who work in hot environments during summer or
in freezers. To ensure employees are not assigned with workload that
is intolerable to them and to protect juveniles, the Group prohibits any
child labour and forced labour in the said policy.

The Group acknowledges the importance of maintaining a proper
work-life balance for its employees. To bolster the social bonding among
our employees, different employee gatherings and social activities were
organized.

Fqual Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-Discrimination

The Group is committed to creating an equal working environment. A
set of assessment procedures have been formulated, which allows all
store employees to have equal promotion opportunity. A set of key
performance indicators (the “KPIs") have been designed to assess the
performance of every employee comprehensively and fairly. Under the
performance assessment framework, managers-in-charge can measure
employee performance against the KPIs and determine who should be
promoted.

We oppose any form of discrimination. Employment opportunities
should not be affected by the applicant’s disability. The Group has
fulfilled its anti-discrimination commitments by deeds and has hired
employees with disabilities in certain branches. “Notes on Employment
of Persons with Disabilities” are issued to employees to facilitate their
cooperation during their daily work. Supervisors will assign appropriate
jobs to persons with disabilities, and they will provide timely help to
them when necessary. Besides, a regular teacher will be arranged for our
disabled employees to accommodate their work schedule accordingly.
The Human Resources Department will pay social insurance for our
disabled employees and protect their legitimate rights and interests
while allowing them to be exposed to opportunities for normal work
and self-reliance.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Employment Practices (Continued)

Employee Communication

Effective communication is of vital importance to cater to the needs of
employees. The Group maintains various means of communication with
employees. Employee meetings are held regularly. The departments
under the Supporting Office and stores have different forms of
employee meetings every month to update them with the Company’s
new policies, procedures and news from human resources and allow
team members to learn from and exchange ideas amongst themselves.
Also, bulletin boards are available at stores and the Supporting Office,
and employees can obtain the latest information from the Company
so that staff loyalty can be enhanced. Besides, the Group has utilized
WeCom Work to disseminate information relating to training programs
and corporate culture to its staff. The Group also provides electronic
publications for internal reference, for which it is the joint effort of
different departments of the Group and reflects comments from
employees. The Group also wishes to hear from employees directly. An
“employee suggestion mailbox” has been made available for employees
to raise their innovative ideas to the Human Resources Department. The
Group also requires all store managers to communicate with their staff
proactively and understand the front-line employees’ comments on the
Group’s business. These comments would be taken into account in the
formulation of our people-oriented human resources policies.

Health and Safety

Health and Safety Management

Employee health is key in maintaining superior food and service
quality. Occupational safety is a top priority to the Group. The Group
has put into action the Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Requirements promulgated by the local governments and
required by applicable laws and regulations of the relevant local
governments. As specified in the “Human Resources Policy”, employees
are required to fill in the health declaration form during the recruitment
process. The Human Resources Department provides a basic security
package to employees. In addition to providing accident insurance
coverage, employees are arranged with body checks annually so as to
acknowledge them with their health conditions.

—ECEFER a1
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

Health and Safety Management (Continued)

The work environment is vital to employees’ safety. To ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards, the Group develops and implements regularly
plans for purchasing work safety protective equipment (the “WSPE"),
to assure that sufficient and proper WSPE are available to employees
in the workplace. To pursue an injury-free working environment, the
Group has incorporated fire prevention and anti-theft practices and a
range of rules on the use of all machinery and equipment into the “YOS
Equipment Maintenance Handbook” and the “Employee Handbook”.
Moreover, the Group pays particular attention to safety black-spots
in the workplace, and deployed dedicated personnel to monitor the
production environment to address various safety hazards on a regular
basis, and to minimise the incidence of glass burst, external effluent
seepage and any other hazards. By continuously optimising through
means, such as reporting and analysing data of the safety incidents as
specified in the "Human Resources Policy”, we strive to address the root
causes of safety problems.

The Company understands that prevention is better than cure. The
Company has designed a set of occupational safety training programs,
including occupational health and safety management requirements,
occupational disease prevention, HACCP program. Every employee must
pass the exams after completing the required training to ensure that
they have the required knowledge of occupational health and safety.

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
taken swift actions to strengthen the health and safety precautionary
measures across all operations to ensure the health of our employees
and customers. Such measures include but are not limited to:
Increase the frequency of disinfection to all areas and facilities;
Provide hand sanitizers at cashiers and near entrances;

Set up partitions on shared tables;

Check body temperature of all employees, customers and
personnel before they enter the stores;

Require all employees to wear face masks.
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Care for Employees (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

Health and Safety Management (Continued)

Apart from the above measures, the Group strictly abides by the
regulations enforced by the governments in the regions where the
Group operates, endeavouring to minimise the risks of transmission of
COVID-19 in stores and delivery services that may jeopardize customers’
wellbeing.

The Company is highly committed to ensuring our employees’ health
and safety. In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group attached great importance to the health and safety of its
employees, committed itself to provide employees with a healthy, safe
and comfortable working environment and strived to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at workplaces to ensure the personal safety
and health of employees during work. We are proud that our effort has
paid off, receiving the “Anti-epidemic Pioneer Model Enterprise Award”
and the "Beijing Food and Beverage Fighting Epidemic Model Award".

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with occupational health and safety-related laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong, including but not limited to the Work Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic of China, the Regulations
on the Workplace Occupational Health Supervision and Administration,
and the Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of Hong Kong that would
have a significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group has formulated induction and vocational training materials
in the “Human Resources Policy” and designed various internal training
handbooks. Training is delivered in diversified forms for employees at
different levels to receive a wide range of tailored on-the-job education
and training to strengthen their business operating skills. To ensure
the effectiveness of the training programs so that our customers
are provided with quality services, trainees are required to meet the
standards within a specified period.

The Group organizes different kinds of training and competitions,
including food safety awareness and fundamental skill training for newly
joined staff, on-job training of internal control for store managers, and
food safety competitions to raise the employees’ awareness of food
safety. Our Quality Control Department also conducts quarterly activities
to improve the food safety awareness of its staff.
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Operating Practices

Food is closely related to citizens’ health. Quality is the most important
factor to achieve sustainable growth of a QSR business and build a
trustworthy commercial brand. We attach greater importance to food
safety and nutrition than to speed and low price. With stringent rules
on our purchase of raw materials, transportation and food preparation
process, our customers can feel at ease when enjoying our food.

Supply Chain Management

Procurement Policy

Supplier is the first control point on food quality and safety management
of the Group. Apart from taste, we need to ensure all the raw materials
are safe. The Group has formulated the “Procurement Policy” to maintain
a strict supplier selection mechanism, with indicators such as supply
time, reputation, capacities, capital, origin, safety system and reports
after carrying out on-site visits. We prefer to partner with leaders of
the relevant market sectors and suppliers using environmental-friendly
materials. All materials are supplied from designated places and we
would choose the leading companies of each sector as our partners,
where appropriate. We ban all suppliers who were involved in serious
food safety and environmental pollution issues from being our business
partners. Environmental performance is one of our selection criteria.
We give preference to 1SO14001 certified companies and choose
suppliers with the established environmental management system.
After a supplier is selected, the Group arranges on-site inspection for
reviewing their food safety and requires suppliers to sign the “Food
Safety Agreement”. Supplier evaluation would be done once a year to
review the quality of their products to ensure fulfillment of the Group's
standard. To monitor the food safety and quality from the source and
ensure ingredients are up to safety standards, samples of raw materials
purchased would be sent to third-party inspection organizations for
quality tests.

Logistics Management

While the process of choosing suppliers is the first line of defense
to safeguard food quality, the transportation of raw materials is also
critical to quality assurance. We have designed a set of indicators for
the measurement of quality of raw materials in transit, for example,
hygiene and temperature of trucks and storages. We require all staff
to handle the goods with great care to avoid any damages. Besides,
we have an in-house laboratory within our logistic centres to test the
quality of our raw materials. Trucks are sterilised daily before loading
goods. High-resolution closed-circuit televisions have been installed in
our logistic centres to monitor the material handling process all the time.
Following proper logistics management, all food materials delivered to
stores are of good quality and the risk of food safety incidents caused
by food material spoilage is reduced.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services

The Group attaches great importance to food and service quality as
well as corporate reputation, and actively monitors the food and service
quality through internal controls. We also maintain communication with
our customers to ensure understanding and meeting customer needs
and expectations, and continuously improve our products and services
by understanding customer satisfaction levels.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the quality of
products and services, including but not limited to the Food Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People's Republic of
China on Protection of the Rights and Interests of the Consumers, and
the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China that would have
a significant impact on the Group.

Food Safety

Food can provide nutrients, but as an old saying goes, a closed mouth
catches no flies. Eating insanitary or improperly treated food may give
rise to serious health problems. We aim at zero incidences of critical
food safety accident and building a brand of food and beverage
which can be trusted by our customers. The Group has a professional
management team, a sound food safety system with rigorous internal
and external control procedures and management manuals. During
FY2020, the Group complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact relating to customer health and safety in the
PRC, including but not limited to the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Food Hygiene Law of the People’s Republic
of China.

Our stores perform checking on the quality of food materials in
accordance with the checklist of our internal food safety twice a day
to ensure that food materials are consumed before their expiry dates.
Also, we have well-trained food safety staff responsible for the food
safety inspection to avoid any outbreak of safety incidents. For hygiene
management, our stores adopt strict procedures and carry out regular
cleaning. The Quality Control Department will carry out random
checking to ensure the required processes have been properly carried
out. Ozone generators have been installed in the processing centre and
the sterilization process covers the whole processing area to ensure food
safety in the processing centre.
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Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services (Continued)
Food Safety (Continued)

We have obtained certifications of 1SO22000 and 1SO14001 for our food
safety management system and environment management system.
Food safety management involves many aspects. While we have
ensured the quality of raw materials, we also require all our equipment
to be clean and functioning properly, waste and effluent are properly
disposed of, and disinfection and pests control are done regularly in
the stores. Cooking procedures determine food safety and taste. We
have prepared detailed standard operating procedures on all items.
Employees are required to follow our good processing practices in food
preparation. Besides, they must meet our hygienic requirements so that
our customers can enjoy products and services with consistent quality
in our stores. To facilitate enforcement of the abovementioned food
safety policies, we have also formed a Food Safety Audit Committee to
carry out detailed examinations and inspections on the safety of food
preparation. Apart from the controls exercised by the supply chain, the
Food Safety Audit Committee also assesses raw materials, processes,
kitchen equipment and the surrounding environment, and carries out
laboratory tests on randomly picked samples, to ensure food safety with
a scientific approach.

Customer Service

Competition in the QSR sector in which the Group operates is intensive.
To become the favourite QSR brand of customers, we need to emphasize
our service attitude, dining environment and food quality, to assure the
best dining experience for our customers in every aspect, rather than
care solely about the speed of preparation. We carry out customer
satisfaction survey from time to time, which covers different areas,
such as food quality, service experience, food portion and environment
cleanliness. After analyzing scores given by customers from different
aspects, we identify key areas that have room for improvement and take
the improvement actions in the following quarter and we continuously
improve our food and service quality. The Group uses online data
analysis systems such as MegaMeta, AFTEE, and Boen to collect customer
satisfaction data. Customer satisfaction scores are now one of the KPIs
of our employees, which provide the Group with prompt and accurate
information on the customers’ needs.

Aiming at improving our food and service quality, we have implemented
procedures to monitor the comments of customers collected from
various platforms (including Meituan Waimai, Ele.Me, Dianping, Group
purchase) on food quality, dining environment, service attitude through
the comment board, aspects of dine-in, take-out and member spending
to allow a more efficient response on improving customer satisfaction.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Operating Practices (Continued)

Quality of Products and Services (Continued)
Customer Complaint

The Group is committed to providing customers with quality products
and services and taking every customer complaint seriously. We have
formulated the “Procedures for Handling Customers’ Complaints”, which
set out the guidelines for employees to handle customers’ complaints
and ensure that each complaint is documented and followed up. If
customers have any complaints about dine-in, take-out, delivery, and
meal ordering, they can voice out their comments by phone, e-mail, in
writing, or in person at the stores. Our customer service staff will do
their best to understand and manage the feedback after receiving the
complaint and record the complaint in detail. The complaint processing
records will be used for annual analysis and feedback to continuously
optimize our products and services.

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group vigorously protects customers’ privacy and prohibit
employees from disclosing customer data and membership data. We
have formulated the “Regulations on the Management of Information
Security” according to the provisions of relevant laws and regulations.
We have disciplinary measures detailed in our employee handbook
prohibiting employees from disclosing customers’ data without
authorisation. Any employee who copies, keeps, or removes confidential
documents without the Company’s consent will be subject to
disciplinary actions.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group prohibits advertisements to disclose descriptions, claims
or illustrations that are not true. The Group advertises our restaurants
through a variety of platforms, such platforms include commercials,
restaurant apps and billboards, etc. By complying with relevant
legislation and code of practices, the Group organises promotion
campaigns and creates advertising materials to ensure they are reliable,
reasonable, and not containing any deceitful details or elements when
generating advertisements in order to protect consumers’ interests,
rights and benefits.
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Operating Practices (Continued)
Anti-Corruption and Code of Conduct
Anti-corruption

The Group pursues “Conscientious about Quality”. While product and
service quality are indeed something we work hard for, the Group
also cares about business ethics by complying with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering. Every employee is required to abide by
the Code of Conduct and good practices set forth by the Group. The
Group explicitly requires every employee to abide by the laws of the
PRC and Hong Kong. Accepting any gift from any supplier or customer
in any form or by any means by any employees in the name of the
Company is forbidden. The anti-corruption policy of the Group has
proven to be of positive effect. No legal case regarding corrupt practices
happened within the Group last year. The Group has put in place the
whistle-blowing procedures, for which an employee may report any
illegal, immoral practice or any act in breach of the Code of Conduct
to his or her immediate head or the Internal Audit Department. The
whistleblower will be protected, and the investigation will be made and
the case will be followed up. By doing so, we could create a fair business
environment.

During FY2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to anti-corruption in the PRC and Hong
Kong, including but not limited to the Anti-Corruption and Bribery Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-money Laundering Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
of Hong Kong that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Community

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to emboldening and supporting the
community with rising social participation and contribution as part
of its strategic development. Apart from providing and integrating
high-quality food for communities where we operate, we also aim to
provide different opportunities to the wider community in order to
promote social inclusion and diversity.

To fulfill our social responsibility, we have recruited disabilities to join
our service team. We believe hiring disabilities does not only diversify
our corporate culture but also help create a workforce that reflects the
diverse range of customers we serve and the community where we
operate.



HE(E)

REAHEEE(E)
RAT—HROARBEELSHRNER N - FA
SEEH2EEBEARAFHBANTRES &
EREMBBEEN R RES - RFEESE
[(RABRLEFREEES RELRBENETES
ERERSS Y RHMZHEEHE - EE
BERTHEERHHEBREANMAELIN
BEIRBENERT2E T TRNMLT - A
EEE AEEEANBENEREZDESEED
BRT  XUERRAI R EE 2 RS KE
TRESRHERKS -

FRTEEERMIN  AEBEXEAILERSE
W BBRRARBEBEEABRENEGE MR
HE o UbS  BPIRBBRERN T -RINES
BREREZHBR  URSBIERN/NE - NEEE
CEEEHTERSEERHETHINERKS
R PIARREILERERMAEZREET - EAR
Fa RERFFEASE-RIEREH P
EESENERBHEREEEN - B AKE
BREBRELHEAMNTAHEE - BE LS
R FEAE R R BRI XX - AR
REESRABBROFEANELR - BETR
MEFIRABRRREY  AEBETFEEA
TRAXMEHE ZREFAEL  HHULGEE
AF e

2019 M E T R R IE R EHRE - AEEEME
HRE RETSERY - HHR AEE@P
BARMm L@ SEMEBBTOEUALETEH
REKEEREMR W AKRET/LEOS
MET ERXBRHEHRHAT - AMUBEROS -

RIR - HEKREBSHRS

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community (Continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (Continued)
Understanding that education for the next generation is important to
the development of the community, therefore the Group focuses to
participate in organizing community activities related to education,
including cultural exchange activities for students in Beijing and
Hong Kong. We continued to take part in the “Beijing-Hong Kong
Outstanding Students” by offering scholarships to Hong Kong students
studying in Beijing and arranging internships for them. In addition
to experiencing office culture in the PRC during their internship, all
interns visited different places with the companionship of students from
Beijing. The Group believes that cultural exchange can build lifelong
friendship between the students and provide them with development
opportunities under the increasingly frequent business activities
between Hong Kong and the Mainland.

Apart from promoting cultural exchange, the Group had also supported
Beijing-based Hong Kong companies to organize athletic games for
the Hong Kong professionals and exchange programs. In addition, we
organized a series of activities for the Hong Kong students, including film
shows and visiting alleys in Beijing. The Group believes these activities
not only provide participants the opportunity for new experiences,
but also provide a communication platform for them in developing
and starting businesses in Beijing in the future. The project allows
teenagers to participate in a series of group activities to develop their
team spirit and leadership capacity. In addition, the Group anticipates
that exchanges between Hong Kong and the Mainland will become
increasingly prominent in the future. Bringing Hong Kong students to
North China for exchange does not only promote cultural exchange, but
also serve as a starting point for teenagers’ interest in the development
in the Mainland. Through different youth training programs and
exchange activities, the Group brings different cultural stimulus to young
people, develops their potential and helps the society cultivate talents.

During the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group had immediately reacted
by making various donations. In particular, the Group had donated
face masks as well as Yoshinoya and DQ products to organizations
in different cities and regions in the PRC. Besides, the Group had
provided disposable surgical masks for its employees, their families, and
consumers who did not have them.

SESBEER 49
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HEE) B Community (Continued)
AR EEFEE) Corporate Social Responsibility (Continued)

FRZEEE EETEINREZENRES TR By making such donations, employees’ cohesion and spirit were
Rl AEETEHg BEEETNEEE - AR developed, the Group's credibility to society and consumers was also

NHEIRMERETLEARNEES - REN raised. It also expresses the goodwill of corporate citizens to both
ETE AEBESTIFERRBITERE L] employees and society. With the above actions, the Group was awarded
FtRmiEEaE I NRY - the recognitions of “Anti-epidemic Pioneer in China’s Food Industry” and

“Beijing Anti-epidemic Model".

REBKEESTFTE  HBE2EEI2NER The Group will continue to support the community by encouraging

AMEEBEARNERERESEEED  UEDE all employees to participate in charitable events such as volunteering

FEAT -BMEGE BBREMTE  AINESR organized by recognized institutions in order to help those in need. We

BINHGETREAREH - believe through returning to the community, employees’ sense of social
responsibility and civic awareness can be raised.

50 AREEZRERAT
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company has complied with
the code provisions (“CP") of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

The principles as set out in the CG Code have been adopted into
our corporate governance practices. To ensure strict compliance with
the latest CG Code, the Board will (a) review and regularly update the
corporate governance policies and practices of the Company; (b) review
and oversee the continuous training of the directors and the senior
management; () examine and monitor the compliance of and disclosure
under legal and regulatory requirements; (d) develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable
to employees and directors; and (e) review the Company's compliance
with the code and disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

Business Model and Strategy

The Board directs the Group’s development of business model
and strategy, and the management of the Company manages
the implementation of strategy and business, follow up on the
implementation status and report back to the Board from time to time.
Details of the Group's business and financial review for the year 2020
are set out in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this
Annual Report.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct of dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. The Model Code also applies to “relevant
employees” as defined in the CG Code.

Based on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, the directors
confirmed that they complied with the required standards in the Model
Code adopted by the Company throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2020.

—ECEFER 51
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Board of Directors

Up to the date of publication of this Annual Report, the Board comprised
of six directors, including three independent non-executive directors,
being Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (Chairman), Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert and
Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph; one non-executive director, being Ms.
Lam Fung Ming, Tammy and two executive directors, being Mr. Hung
Ming Kei, Marvin (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Wong Kwok Ying.
Biographical details of these directors which include relationship among
themselves are set out under “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 66 to 638
of this Annual Report.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy on 30 August 2013 which
was updated on 17 January 2019 (the “Board Diversity Policy”). The
Company recognises the importance and benefit of having a diverse
board that fits its own business model and specific needs in order to
achieve its corporate goals and strategic objectives. The Company also
sees diversity at the board level as an essential element in maintaining
a competitive advantage.

The Company aims to ensure that board appointments will be made
on the basis of a range of diversity factors including but not limited to
gender, age, nationality, language, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, industrial knowledge and length of service
as well as taking into account factors based on its own business model
and specific needs from time to time. Selection of candidates to join the
Board will be in part dependent on the pool of available candidates with
the necessary skills, knowledge and experience. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and the contribution the chosen candidate will
bring to the Board, having regard to the benefits of diversity on the
Board and without focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
compliance with the amendments of the Listing Rules and the CG
Code which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Dividend Policy aims
to distribute a certain percentage of its profits to shareholders, whilst
retaining adequate reserves for future business expansion.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
shareholders of the Company to be our goal. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into account, inter alia:—

(@)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  the Group’s working capital requirement and surplus needed for
business strategies and future capital expenditure and business
development needs;

() the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity position;
(d)  taxation consideration;

(e)  the general financial and economic conditions; and

() any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Any declaration of dividends will be at the absolute discretion of the
Board and may not have any implication on the Company’s declarations
of dividends in future.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy when appropriate and to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy from time to time and
there can be no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared
in any given period.

The Board accepts that it is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Company. Although the Board bears
overall responsibility for the Company, the management of the Company
(including the executive directors) is the custodian and administrator of
the day-to-day operations of the Company.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation of
independence from each of its independent non-executive directors and
considers them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board will meet at least four times a year and on other occasions
when a board decision is required on a major issue. Directors may
participate in meeting via telephone or video-conferencing. Board
consents are given by vote at board meetings and supplemented via
circulation of written resolutions between board meetings.

—E-FFEH 53
Annual Report 2020



EEEIBHRS
Corporate Governance Report

Exg(E

KR ARTDBTTER2ES
BARESABT2ERRMAREE

EEMEEAY SEFREALAZEET

W2 EEREHAAT RE6H -

eg%(BE

=
o
=

EXEHARERAEFRETHNRTRARAE
BESZEME - Bt K Tﬁf&%ﬁm%%
HERERESTLTHABZHINESY - BE
EFORXBEREEFALERIZCHETAR
AZARME RERMEEMEIZLE &
ERFARZZEIHEINOT

—EFEERIEENE

Board of Directors (Continued)
During the year, there were seven full board meetings (including
those with voting by communication) and two full board circulations.
Individual attendance records for full board meetings of the Company
are set out on page 63 of this Annual Report.

Directors understand their respective responsibilities as a director
towards the conduct and business activities of the Company. To this
end, the Company is responsible for arranging and funding appropriate
training and activities to all directors as and when necessary. All directors
have provided their training records for the year under review to the
company secretary of the Company. A summary of the training received
by the directors during the year according to the records provided by
our directors is as follows:

Summary of Directors’ Training Records in 2020

BIEH (BEEE -
EXAS HEER
meE BERS
HEEMEERE MR
Training activities including
meetings, seminars/

talks held by professions/
organizations and/or
reading materials on

EENS Name of Director relevant topics
BB ITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
Al fEHR Seto Gin Chung, John v
= E Sze Tsai To, Robert v
AER (R -E-FTFNH-HRE) Shek Lai Him, Abraham (retired on 2 June 2020) v
m it & Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph v
FEHITEFE Non-Executive Director
R JELBA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy v
HITESE Executive Directors
B E Hung Ming Kei, Marvin v
EEiE Wong Kwok Ying v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separated and
not performed by the same individual.

The Chairman'’s principal responsibility is to ensure effective running of
the Board, enabling the Board as a whole to play a full and constructive
part in the development and determination of the Group’s business
model, strategies and overall commercial objectives. The Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for the overall day-to-day management of the
Group's businesses and achieving the business model, strategies and
commercial objectives agreed by the Board.

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, an
independent non-executive director of the Company, and the Chief
Executive Officer is Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

Non-Executive Directors’ Term of Office

The non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for specific
terms, subject to retirement and re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association of the Company.

Directors’ Emoluments
Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company was established with a
particular responsibility to review the Company’s remuneration policy
for directors and members of the senior management. For details of the
role and function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference
which align with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the
websites of both the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (the
"HKEx") and the Company.

The remuneration committee is comprised of Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of the
Company) and Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company. Individual attendance records
for the remuneration committee meetings are set out on page 63 of this
Annual Report.

During the year and up to the date of this Annual Report, the committee
made recommendations to the Board on the director’s fee for the
independent non-executive directors, the non-executive director and
the chief executive officer of the Group.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The director’s fees are subject to the approval of the shareholders at
general meetings. Other emoluments are reviewed by the remuneration
committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities of the directors
and the performance and results of the Group. Information relating to
the remuneration of each director for 2020 is set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee with a particular
responsibility to review the Board's structure, size and composition and
to make recommendation to the Board on the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of directors of the Company having given adequate
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy. For details of the role and
function of the committee, please refer to its terms of reference which
align with the CP of the CG Code and have been posted on the websites
of the HKEx and the Company.

The nomination committee is comprised of Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John
(chairman of the committee and chairman of the Company), Mr. Sze Tsai
To, Robert and Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company and Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin,
an executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company.
Individual attendance records for the nomination committee meetings
are set out on page 63 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the committee had (i) reviewed the Board structure,
size and composition; (i) assessed the independence of independent
non-executive directors; (i) made recommendation to the Board on
re-appointment of directors; and (iv) making recommendation to the
Board on the change of members of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee.

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which took effect on 1 January 2019. The Nomination Policy has been
formulated to provide the key selection criteria and principles of the
nomination committee in making any such recommendation.
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Nomination Committee (Continued)

Selection Criteria

The nomination committee is responsible for, among other things,
identifying and evaluating suitably qualified candidates to become
directors and in doing so, it shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:—

(@  character and integrity;

(b)  qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

(0 potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the Board
in terms of qualifications, skills, experience and independence;

(d)  commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest in
order to enhance shareholder value;

(e)  the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and any other measurable
objectives adopted by the Board for achieving diversity on the
Board;

(f) the number of directorships in other listed companies;

(@  compliance with the criteria of independence as prescribed
under the Listing Rules for the appointment of an independent
non-executive director including but not limited to the length of
services of the independent non-executive director; and

(h)  any other relevant factors, including any potential and/or
real conflict of interests and succession planning, as may be
determined by the nomination committee or the Board from time
to time.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the nomination committee shall convene a meeting and
invite nomination of candidates from Board members, for consideration
by the nomination committee. The nomination committee may also
consider nomination of candidates from the Company's shareholders for
the Board's consideration.

For filling a casual vacancy, the nomination committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the
nomination committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

—ECEFER 57
Annual Report 2020



EEEIBHRS
Corporate Governance Report

REEZEG (&)

RERF (&)
REEREEEARENS REXRARE
ARRFBER BABZEAEFZEARE

%o

W

EEQUHEMBNREAECARRAGLSE
MBS REARKRTERE -

RARUEEEHBERNBRRAGLESEZBRBEAZ
B ARBIHRELEMRNZRERNRRTH
e (R K ) - 3 KR BB AR B DA K 3@ AR
] EREBOIFRERBREAZES  BE
(BREBIKABER) B FHEREME
MEH HMEESREZRBRELNERAER
ALRBUIFATES - MBRHTEHIIATE
#—

@ PeEEIALZEF(NMERMEFERR
ZATREEZEHEZATRASER
BYMEZRRA:

b)) MEBRBIUFRTESHHELHE LD
RATEREZHE)HIN EETRARES
B AEFERRZALNERARSH
HEIEEE 2 REA:

O ZATTAEEESERIBR RERE
B
d) ZATHEREFFEZTELER: R

© EHRAITRETE &) B E 2 TR
AR

58 AREEZRERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Procedures (Continued)

For the purpose of or in relation to their standing for selection and
appointment as a director, the proposed candidates will be asked to
submit the necessary information, together with their written consents
to be appointed as a director.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates recommended by
the Board to stand for election at the general meeting, a circular (the
“Circular”) will be sent to shareholders as required under the Listing
Rules. The names, brief biographical information (including qualifications
and relevant experience), independence, remuneration and any other
information of the proposed candidates as required pursuant to the
Listing Rules and applicable laws, rules and regulations will be included
in the Circular. Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect
an individual as an independent non-executive director, the Circular will
also set out the following information:—

(@)  the process for identifying the individual (if applicable) and why
the Board believes the individual shall be elected and the reasons
why it considers the individual to be independent;

(b) if the proposed independent non-executive director will be
holding seven (or such number as stipulated in the Listing Rules
from time to time) or more listed company directorships, the
reasons for the Board to believe that the individual would still be
able to devote sufficient time to the Board;

(©) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can
bring to the Board;

(d)  how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board; and

(e)  any specific information required by the Listing Rules, which may
be amended from time to time.
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Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with terms of
reference aligned with the CP of the CG Code for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting
process and risk management and internal control systems. For details
of the role and function of the committee, please refer to its terms of
reference which align with the CP of the CG Code and have also been
posted on the websites of both the HKEx and the Company.

The audit committee is comprised of Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John (chairman of
the Company) and Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, all of them are independent
non-executive directors of the Company. The chairman of the
audit committee has the required appropriate professional financial
qualifications and experience. Individual attendance records for audit
committee meetings are set out on page 63 of this Annual Report.

In 2020, the audit committee had (i) reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the
management auditing, risk management and internal control systems
and financial reporting matters including review of the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019; (i) reviewed
the audit plan of the Group for 2020; (i) made recommendation to the
Board on the re-appointment of external auditors; and (iv) reviewed the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020. Subsequent to
the year end, the audit committee of the Company reviewed the Group's
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During 2020, the fees payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for the Group’s audit services amounted to RMB2,385,000. Ernst &
Young also provided the Group with non-audit services which amounted
to RMB797,000. The non-audit services during the year mainly included
interim review.

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. As
at 31 December 2020, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which might cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020 have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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Financial Reporting (Continued)
The responsibilities of the external auditor for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor's Report included in this Annual Report.

Risk Management & Internal Control

The Board performs the role of a risk committee and is responsible for
overseeing the Group's risk management and internal control systems
that are designed to facilitate effective and efficient operations and to
ensure the quality of internal and external reporting and its compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations. In devising the systems, the
Group has evaluated the nature and the extent of the risk, the likelihood
of it crystallizing and the cost of controls. The systems are designed
to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
the risk of material misstatement, fraud or losses.

In the course of the annual review, the Board had evaluated the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and the budget of the Group'’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. In addition, the Board has considered
the effectiveness of the Group's processes for financial reporting and
Listing Rules compliance.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems identify any
significant risks, evaluate the risk according to its likely impact and the
likelihood of occurrence and develop effective controls to manage or
mitigate any risks. Findings of the regular reviews of the systems are
reported to the audit committee.

The inside information policy of the Company has set out guidelines
to the directors, officers and all relevant employees of the Group to
ensure inside information (as defined in the Listing Rules) (the “Inside
Information”) of the Group would be disseminated to the public in equal
and timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
The Company also has group internal notification policies and
procedures for setting out guidelines for identification and notification of
Inside Information and notifiable transactions (as defined in the Listing
Rules).
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Risk Management & Internal Control
(Continued)

The Board, with the assistance of its internal audit department and audit
committee, has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, as set out
above, in accordance with C.2.1 of the CG Code and considered them
effective and adequate based on the reviews performed and confirmed
by the management and the risk management and internal control
review reports produced by an independent firm of certified public
accountants. Reviews for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 did
not reveal any significant defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by
the audit committee and the independent firm of certified public
accountants who performed reviews and report to the Board at least
annually would be considered and implemented, if appropriate, as soon
as possible by the Group to further enhance the effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control policies, procedures and practices.

Further, the Board considered the changes, since the last annual review,
in the nature and extent of significant risks to the Group and the Group’s
ability to respond to such changes. Please refer to pages 23 to 25 of
the "Management Discussion and Analysis” which set out the principal
risks and uncertainties identified by the Group's risk management and
internal control systems.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at general meetings
Pursuant to Article 64 of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, one or more shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company shall have the right to deposit a
written requisition to the Board, or the secretary of the Board, specifying
the requested business to be considered and, if the Board thinks fit, the
Board will proceed to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")
for the business specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit of a written requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such an EGM, the requesting shareholder(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by him
(them) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to him
(them) by the Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)
Procedures for shareholders to propose a

person for election as a director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, shareholders may lodge a notice in writing of the intention
to propose a person for election as a director and a notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected at the Company’s Head
Office or at the Company’s Registered Office provided that the period
for lodgment of the notices required will commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting and where such period shall be at least 7 days.

Shareholders should note that election of a director of the Company
is subject to other relevant parts of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Listing Rules, and applicable laws in Cayman
Islands and Hong Kong.

Head Office . Flats E&F, 2/F, Hop Hing Building, 9 Ping Tong
Street East, Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long, New
Territories, Hong Kong

Registered Office  : Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

Sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may raise their enquiries to the Board at the general
meetings of the Company or may at any time send their written
enquiries to the Board by delivering it to the company secretary of the
Company whose contact details are as follows:

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
Flats E&F, 2/F,

Hop Hing Building,

9 Ping Tong Street East,

Tong Yan San Tsuen,

Yuen Long,

New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: 852-2785 2681
Fax: 852-2786 2155
Email: ir@hophing.com
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Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the year 2020. A copy of the consolidated version of
the Memorandum and Articles of Association has been posted on the
websites of both the HKEx and the Company.

Communication With Shareholders

The Board maintains an ongoing and transparent communication with
all shareholders and, in particular, will communicate with shareholders
in general meetings and encourage their participation. The Company
will also communicate with its shareholders by various other means,
such as publication of annual and interim reports, announcements,
circulars and additional information on the Group’s business activities
and development on the Company’s website: http://www.hophing.com.
A shareholders’ communication policy of the Company has been
established and posted on the Company's website.

Directors’/Committee Members’ Attendance
Records in 2020

BHE/THEZEE
Meeting attended/eligible to attend
2REZE ENZET FMZEEE REZEE RRBFAS

Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual General

BEEpng Name of Director Full Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting*
BUIHTEE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BERSE Seto Gin Chung, John

(BEESTER (Chairman of the Board and of the

WEEZEELRE) nomination committee) 7/7 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
FERE Sze Tsai To, Robert

(FHWZEES+E) (Chairman of the remuneration

committee) 77 2/2 272 TER NA 1N

VaEE & Shek Lai Him, Abraham* 33 TEANA  TEANA 11 11
pRug=] Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph

(BRZEELRE) (Chairman of the audit committee) 7/7 22 TEBENA REANA 1/1
FHITEE Non-Executive Director
LA Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 77 NERNA S NERANA L TNERNA 1/1
HITEZE Executive Directors
A Hung Ming Kei, Marvin

(TTE A Z) (Chief Executive Officer) 77 TERBNA  TERBNA 2/2 1/1
EGIES Wong Kwok Ying 77 MEBNA S TEBNA TEBNA 11
* A HEBEBAFHTN_TE_TFA-HR * Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, GBS, JP retired on 2 June 2020

F o
f ARRRZE_ZEFANAHENTZ-_ZFR i 2020 annual general meeting of the Company was held on 2 June 2020.
HEFKRE -
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
their report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Group are mainly engaged in the operation of quick
service restaurant chain business ("QSR Business”), principally selling beef
rice bowl under the brand name of Yoshinoya (5 ¥75X) and ice-cream
under the brand name of Dairy Queen (7/kZE £ f5), in northern part
of China. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Business Review

A review of the Group's business, a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties of the Group, the performance of the Group in the period
under review with reference to key financial performance indicators,
the particulars of important events, key relationships, the environmental
policies and performance, the compliance with laws and regulations and
indications of likely future development in the Group’s business have
been included in the "Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this Annual Report which forms part of this report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 84 to 182.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK0.248 cent per share).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 183 and 184. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Share Capital
Details of the share capital and shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves
Details of the distributable reserves of the Company are set out in note
33 to the financial statements.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Own Listed

Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no purchases,
sales or redemptions by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Seto Gin Chung, John** (Chairman)

Hung Ming Kei, Marvin® (Chief Executive Officer)
Sze Tsai To, Robert**

Shek Lai Him, Abraham** (retired on 2 June 2020)
Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph**

Lam Fung Ming, Tammy*

Wong Kwok Ying*

* Non-executive director
** Independent non-executive director
# Executive director

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the AGM of the Company in accordance with the provisions of
the Company’s amended and restated memorandum and articles of
association. At the AGM, Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph and Mr. Wong
Kwok Ying will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company has received
a written annual confirmation of independence from each of its
independent non-executive directors confirming that they had met
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2020, and as such the Company
considered them to be independent.
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Mr. Seto Gin Chung, John, aged 72, was appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 25
March 2016. Mr. Seto has been appointed as a director of the Group since 25 April 2006 and
is the chairman of the nomination committee and a member of each of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. He is an independent non-executive director
of Pokfulam Development Company Limited, MS Group Holdings Limited and Kowloon
Development Company Limited. He was the Chief Executive Officer of HSBC Broking Services
(Asia) Limited from 1982 to 2001. He was a non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited from 2000 to 2003, a council member of the Stock Exchange from 1994 to
2000 and was the first vice chairman of the Stock Exchange from 1997 to 2000. He had been
a non-executive director of Sateri Holdings Limited, which became a listed company on the
Stock Exchange on 8 December 2010, for the period from 28 October 2010 until the conclusion
of the annual general meeting on 21 May 2013. He retired as an independent non-executive
director of China Everbright Limited on 17 May 2018. He retired as a director of Pacific Eagle
Asset Management Limited on 31 December 2019. He holds a Master of Business Administration
degree from New York University, USA and has over 30 years of experience in the securities
and futures industry.

SEEELE  BF0m R_ZETTFAA-BEZERLAEBES TAKXLQAF
MWEZEexR BELZEGLREZEENE - LAERRBRREBBLRTER
MRAERBBEMAGZEREER - REAHERSHMITZARBA kA
TEZIA - BAREAZELTRRAZBIFATES  BERAHBRITEEARA
Al AFEREEERAR AIFKEERARMNEEESHRIERBRAA - ®
R-E-N\FHUA-BBETREEEARAFRAZBIINTES IR _F—\F+
AT HBEBREEETREEREARARZBYIFNITES -

Mr. Sze Tsai To, Robert, aged 80, was appointed as a director of the Group on 1 June 2000 and is
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of the audit committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Sze is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
was a partner in an international firm of accountants with which he practiced for over 20 years. He is
also an independent non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong listed companies including
Dah Sing Banking Group Limited, Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, Nanyang Holdings Limited
and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited. He resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Min Xin Holdings Limited on 1 April 2018 and of China Travel International Investment
Hong Kong Limited on 24 October 2018.

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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Mr. Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph, aged 67, was appointed as an independent non-executive director
of the Board on 2 February 2016 and is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of
each of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wan is a
Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, the Institute of Directors, the Royal Society of Arts and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wan currently serves as a vice chairperson of the
Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and chairperson of its finance and administration
committee. Formerly, Mr. Wan was a director of the London Court of International Arbitration
and of the International Dispute Resolution Centre in the UK for the periods from February 2012
to September 2014 and from June 2009 to September 2014, respectively. After qualifying as a
Chartered Accountant in 1978, Mr. Wan worked for KPMG in Hong Kong from 1978 to 1987, spending
a year at their London Office. In 1987, Mr. Wan joined Dickson Concepts International Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and distributes luxury goods in South East Asia,
as their Group Finance Director and was responsible for the acquisitions of ST. Dupont, Paris in 1987
and Harvey Nichols, London in 1991. Mr. Wan was the Chief Executive of the Harvey Nichols Group
in the United Kingdom from 1992 to 2014, which was listed on the London Stock Exchange from
1996 to 2003. Mr. Wan was appointed as a board member of the Supervisory Board of ST. Dupont
S.A. (@ company listed on the Paris Bourse) in May 1999 and he was elected the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board in January 2008 until retirement in September 2014. Mr. Wan was an independent
non-executive director of A-Living Services Co, Ltd (now known as A-Living Smart City Services
Co, Ltd) from 9 February 2018 until 20 July 2020. He did not offer himself for re-election as an
independent non-executive director of A-Living Services Co,, Ltd at its annual general meeting on
15 May 2020. Mr. Wan's professional expertise is in the areas of international tax planning, transaction
due diligence and forensic accounting. He also has gained expertise in business turnarounds,
mergers and acquisitions, corporate finance, department store retailing, restaurant operations and
the global luxury markets.
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Ms. Lam Fung Ming, Tammy, aged 57, joined the Group in 1990 and was appointed as an
executive director of the Group on 1 November 2004, and re-designated as a non-executive
director on 28 June 2013. Prior to the re-designation, Ms. Lam was the Chief Operating Officer
of the Group responsible for the sales activities, manufacturing, quality assurance and product
development of the Group'’s edible oils business. Ms. Lam holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Food Science and Technology and a Higher Diploma in Chemical Technology from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has over 30 years' experience in the oil and food
industry. Currently, she is a director and an employee of the edible oils group which is indirectly
controlled by the controlling shareholders of the Company.

HPAELE  WFO0R RAKETRAR  BEAREZER - B _T——F=
AT -_BEZERAKEZHTEETRITHAH - AEERARTRELEZEGKE -
AEER NN _FEXRIEBMMNAR  BEESL 2 T HERE
SRERERIRERNIHERET R AELEHEFBE _TEFBEEELRE
EGgR WEZRRIEMATRBROMEERNDTZEZEIARIFAEE R
BEZRBEGD HKEEBARRZTERE -

Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin, aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group with overall
responsibility for the business of the Group. He was appointed an executive director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 12 March 2012. Mr. Hung is a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor's degree in Science majoring in
Accounting from the University of Southern California in the United States of America in 1992
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from China Europe International Business
School. Mr. Hung has over 20 years of experience in business management and quick
service restaurant operations. By virtue of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Mr. Hung
is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed in the section under “Substantial
Shareholders” and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares".

BEERALE BFoR SERANERGRAE R_TTTF-ATHEZES
AEBEZ -ELELEREEEHAMACERSE - REFB=TOLFUE itk
BREER - BR—NANTBEMAREER > SEBRN —HEERKE ST -

Mr. Wong Kwok Ying, aged 61, is the Company Secretary and the Comptroller of the Group
and was appointed as a director of the Group on 10 January 2000. Mr. Wong is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 35 years' finance,
accounting and audit experience. Prior to joining the Group in 1990, he worked with one of
the international accounting firms in Hong Kong.
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Directors’ Emoluments
Details of the emoluments of the directors on a named basis are set out
in note 8 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements and Contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that were significant in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any director of the Company and
the director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Interests in Competing Business

None of the directors of the Company had interests in any business apart
from the Group’s business, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM is a party to any unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or in existence during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Equity-Linked Agreements

Share options granted to directors and selected
eligible employees

The share option schemes of the Company were adopted for the purpose
of incentivizing and rewarding our directors and employees who contribute
to the success of the operations of the Group. The directors of the Company
may at their absolute discretion grant options to any employee (being
executive director of, senior management of, or other full-time or part-time
employee of any member of the Group); any non-executive director or
proposed director (whether independent or not) of any member of the
Group; any consultant, expert, agent or representative of any member of
the Group; and any person approved by the Board or shareholders of the
Company. During the year under review, no share options were granted,
vested or cancelled and 130,914,000 share options were lapsed. No share
options were exercised and no shares were issued during the year. Details
of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Award shares granted to eligible employees

The Share Award Scheme was adopted as a means to recognise the
contribution of and to provide incentives for the eligible employees.
Details of the Share Award Scheme and details of the award shares
granted are set out in note 26 to the financial statements. 48,293,487
award shares were granted during the year ended 31 December 2020.
The award shares are subject to conditions and vesting schedules as
determined by the Board in its sole discretion.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Save for the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
directors and officers of the Group, no other permitted indemnity
provision for the benefit of any director or who had been a director of
the Company, or of its subsidiaries, where applicable, is in force.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying

Shares

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the directors
and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company

FEROEE - BORERME

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

RN

EER ZEiB BEFEZ ERITRAE

ERnEs ZEEE TE®A et ZEDL

Percentage

of the

Directly and Through Company’s

beneficially controlled  Beneficiary issued share

EEpE Name of director owned corporation of a trust Total capital

Al fE R Seto Gin Chung, John 500,847 - - 500,847 0.005%

BEERE Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 72,652,163  3,412,399,373 73,332,815  3,558,384,351 35.335%
ogza0) B &t i)
Note (i) Note (ii)

& Sze Tsai To, Robert 2,454,678 - - 2,454,678 0.024%

Bt - Notes:

(i) 3412399373 — B2 EERESES M
HAREE TS HEXEREERAZITA

iy 7333285 HABA—EEEEAERER  MZ

EREEZEEIaAREARELERE L~
DVNCI

SR EX B ER M BRERM T EERTE
ECHERBEN RZT_TF+-_A=+—08"
MEEERARAHET BB EEER RLE
ZFRBEGRAIEXVED Z B M - HERNHES
T BABREE F R EFRG 3525 (F A %
ZHEDIAR  HARBREETRNEANRRE R
BRIz ESSIRRE -

(i) 3,412,399,373 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust, the
trustee of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin.

(i) 73,332,815 shares were beneficially owned by a discretionary trust whose
discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by Mr. Hung Ming
Kei, Marvin.

Save as disclosed above and the share options granted to the directors
as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, as at 31 December
2020, none of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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TERRERHEMALTHAIRGKRIEEE  Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
B zEZRARE Interests and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares
RZE-_EF+-_A=+—H EAQGMEM As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of substantial
ERANTIREZSHFRAEEROIEBGATFEZ shareholders/other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the
S TERE T HEMATRARBR Company, as notified to the Company and recorded in the register
MRBERO P EFEIOREDT: required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO,
were as follows:

RAEQXTEBR ZER Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
AR
Fr ¥ ERITRAK
M &t ZER#A ZEDH

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

ordinary issued share

BRERB Name of shareholder Notes shares held capital

True Force Ventures Limited True Force Ventures Limited (i) 1,408,783,784 13.99%

Earn Field International (PHT) Limited Earn Field International (PHT) Limited (i) 1,408,783,784 13.99%

H H Hung Foundation Limited H H Hung Foundation Limited (i) 3,579,187,103 35.54%

A F Hung Hak Hip, Peter (iv) 3,929,297,734 39.02%

HE AR Hung Diana Wan Ling v) 3,929,297,734 39.02%

Winner Planet Limited Winner Planet Limited (i) 1,625,526,305 16.14%

Creative Mount Limited Creative Mount Limited (vii) 1,587,229,730 15.76%

North China Fast Food (2008) Limited North China Fast Food (2008) Limited (viii) 3,412,399,373 33.89%

Ample Great Ventures Limited Ample Great Ventures Limited (ix) 3,412,399,373 33.89%

AERAE Hung Ming Kei, Marvin (x) 3,558,384,351 35.34%

Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited (xi) 579,316,000 5.75%

Arisaig Partners (Asia) Pte Ltd Arisaig Partners (Asia) Pte Ltd (xii) 579,316,000 5.75%

Mt - Notes:

(1) LB RO 2 BELRIFEA (1) The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

(i) Tl EIRDZERFTAEAC (i) The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

(iii) H H Hung Foundation Limited f&# % | Predominance (iii) H H Hung Foundation Limited indirectly controls more than one-third of
(PHT) Limited &z Action Success (PHT) Limited £ i% the voting power at general meetings of Predominance (PHT) Limited
RAGFBB=D2— MK ZH - Predominance and Action Success (PHT) Limited. Predominance (PHT) Limited is deemed
(PHT) Limited %% 18 A& 5 £ ST ¥ () B (i) B st 2 B 1 to be interested in the shares mentioned in Notes (i) and (i) above, and
KRN TE TR A 2594,831,805 1 B AD R A 594,831,805 shares held by certain shareholders of the Company. Action
HE 25 o Action Success (PHT) Limited 35 4 166,787,730 Success (PHT) Limited held 166,787,730 shares of the Company.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares (Continued)
Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter is deemed to be interested in:

(a) 3,579,187,103 shares held through H H Hung Foundation Limited
mentioned in Note (iii) above;

(b) 73,332,815 shares held through Fortune Blessing (PH) Limited;

(@) 274,766,648 shares held through controlled corporations; and

(d) 2,011,168 shares held through a controlled corporation which Mrs.
Hung Diana Wan Ling, Mr. Hung Hak Hip, Peter’s spouse is deemed
to be interested in.

Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling is deemed to be interested in 2,011,168 shares
held through a controlled corporation. Mrs. Hung Diana Wan Ling, Mr.
Hung Hak Hip, Peter's spouse is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in (a) to (c) of Note (iv) above.

The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.
The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

North China Fast Food (2008) Limited indirectly controls more than
one-third of the voting power at general meetings of certain registered
shareholders including Winner Planet Limited, Creative Mount Limited and
Predominance Fortune Limited. The company is deemed to be interested
in the shares mentioned in Notes (vi) and (vii) above and 199,642,838
shares held by Predominance Fortune Limited.

Ample Great Ventures Limited is the sole shareholder of North China
Fast Food (2008) Limited which is deemed to be interested in shares
mentioned in Note (viii) above.

Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin holds the entire issued share capital of Ample
Great Ventures Limited and is deemed to be interested in the shares
mentioned in Note (viii) above. He also directly and beneficially owns
72,652,163 shares. In addition, Mr. Hung Ming Kei, Marvin is deemed to be
interested in 73,332,815 shares beneficially owned by a discretionary trust
whose discretionary beneficiaries included a company owned by him.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and

Underlying Shares (Continued)
Interests in Ordinary Shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(xi)  The registered holder of the shares disclosed above.

(xii)  Arisaig Partners (Asia) Pte Ltd is the investment manager exercising
discretionary management over Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited and
is deemed to be interested in the shares mentioned in Note (xi) above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had
not been notified of any persons other than the directors of the
Company whose interests and share options are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” and in note 25 to the financial statements,
respectively, who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, which are required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions and Related Party

Transactions

Save for connected transactions which are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the Listing Rules, during the year, there were no
other transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that were
subject to the reporting requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of related party transactions undertaken during the year have
been reported under note 30 to the financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year.
The percentage of purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers were 8.0% and 38.5%, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the directors, neither the directors, their
associates, nor any shareholders who own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital, had any beneficial interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and five largest suppliers during the year.
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Retirement Benefit Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefits scheme,
namely the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
for the employees of the Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong who are
eligible to participate. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ salaries and charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. In accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer’s contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total scheme contributions
made by the Group amounted to approximately RMB76.5 million and no
forfeited contributions were applied to reduce employer’s contributions.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
amended and restated articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

Subsequent Event
No material events occurred after the end of the reporting period and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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= EEm Auditor

TKEMEBAERSE  MEEEAARRA Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditor

BZEERERSREERRBFRS LIRS - of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

REESE On Behalf of the Board

FE SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN

A 4E R P Chairman

o Hong Kong

—E-_—%=H=+H 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 84 to 182, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit

FTBRNETE R AR - procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

HRETSBE BEMNBEANAEERREENER

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FE

Stocks

R-_EB-TFEF_A=+—H > EEBEZFER/RAR®E BMEEBFEKFEELTFERBEXIETZERIAFN

1271000007C * (E RE)EE Z2166% - AR EEEFEEX HERFEMRERE LTERBERREEETFER

ZEERIHPRAZRM ffﬁéﬁzgﬁ/\i‘ﬁ RITF & Rx
B R 1F B K - & 8

EHEE EREEBETFIHT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had stocks of RMB127.1

mZHERERSE - RATREEERBEFTERE
ETH R RP2MAERFIEZEREERER
ETEAA

million, representing 16.6% of current assets. As the stocks of
the Group were mainly composed of food ingredients, which
were subject to expiry, the estimation of the stock provision
required management’s significant judgement in determining
slow moving stocks as these were based on forecast stock usage.

B ED H NI B REM F3IR6
Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
financial statements.
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We assessed stock excess and obsolescence provisions by
considering the stock level against historical stock turnover
days and substantively checked to both past and subsequent
sales and usage information on selected stock samples. We
also discussed with management on any stocks with potential
obsolescence problem. We attended physical stock counts at
warehouses and stores and performed compilation test.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

BEMHNESNAEERRETSHA)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)

KR BERERHE

RREAREHEEEZ B EF G

Impairment assessment of furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements, and right-of-use assets
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had furniture, fixtures
and leasehold improvements of RMB76,056,000 and right-of-
use assets of RMB525,271,000, representing 8.7% and 60.1%
of the Group's non-current assets, respectively. Management
performed impairment assessments on the Group's furniture,
fixtures and leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets
where an indicator of impairment existed. During the vyear,
impairment of furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements of
RMBI11,523,000 and of right-of-use assets of RMB71,767,000 were
recognised to reduce their respective carrying amounts to their
recoverable amounts.

HRRE BEREMNEABRRRYE BEREXBFOEAE -
FEEEENREFEARRECELBUXBRSELE
i 48 71 #9 38 Bl

We evaluated management’s impairment assessment and the
identification of CGUs or groups of CGUs based on the Group’s
accounting policies and our understanding of the Group’s
business.

RAEEREENRENGR  RATFEOERBNE
EReEEBEM LIS EFEU AR W E S KR
AHEAEBESET L MMFAEMANEERR:

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, we also
assessed (i) the value in use calculation methodology adopted
by management in determining of recoverable amounts of CGUs
or groups of CGUs, and (i) the key assumptions used in the
calculations:

- BEEHEMAXHE  FHLEER EEEHRBRD
EFBUNTBAERBAEE X

- for budgeted sales and expenses, by comparing the Group's
budgets of the relevant CGUs with the historical results; and

- BRUABREME EANBEEZRNHEB T2EWISH
BREANALEAF

- for discount rate, by making reference to market data and
comparable companies in the industry with the assistance
of our internal valuation specialists.

B APS I8 > B AT Al B 75 R 3R BT sE 135045 ER B 5T b A 3
E o

We also assessed the disclosures of the impairment assessment
included in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter (Continued)
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Impairment assessment of furniture, fixtures and leasehold improvements, and right-of-use assets (Continued)
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When performing the impairment test, management determined
the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-generating units
(“CGUs") or groups of CGUs as at 31 December 2020 based
on value in use calculations using the discounted cash flow
method. Significant management judgement and estimates
were involved in the assessments of the recoverable amounts of
CGUs or groups of CGUs, for example budgeted sales, budgeted
expenses and discount rate. The outcome was sensitive to the
expected future market conditions and the actual performance

of the CGUs or groups of CGUs.

BB H NP B HRERMES 13814 -

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 13 and 14 to the

financial statements.
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Other Information Included in the Annual
Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

—EoEEER g
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central

Hong Kong

30 March 2021

—ECEFER 83
Annual Report 2020



o A\ 12 £
ﬁiﬁl:l -Jl:n%a(

Consolidated Income Statement

HE-Z-ZHF+-F=1+—HI-FE Year ended 31

December 2020

—F=%F —ETNF
2020 2019
N3 ARET AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EER TURNOVER 5 1,590,270 2,102,814
8 & B AR Cost of sales (645,049) (782,446)
Hab g A R =58 Other income and gains, net 5 39,154 17,698
HERDIEER Selling and distribution expenses (774,721) (955,892)
— R RITHEA General and administrative expenses (169,463) (176,438)
e EERE Impairment of non-financial assets (83,290) (11,202)
DhEEREZ Share of profits and losses of joint
vi F X 85 18 venture 15 (2,577) (1,264)
KRR (FE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 6 (45,676) 193,270
A& AR Finance costs 7 (47,971) (41,523)
BRBAERR(EE) PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (93,647) 151,747
FrisfiEe,(FAxX) Income tax credit/(expense) 10 11,746 (47,637)
AT REFTEAEN PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
REBR(FE) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (81,901) 104,110
ERARIREREAEWL EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
BRERN (FHE) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12
HAK Basic AR¥RMB(0.84) Dcent A REERMBIO7T7 cents
g Diluted ARMRMB(0.84) Dcent A RHRMBI06S cents

84 AREEZRKRARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HEZZFTF+-H=+—HIEFJE Year ended 31 December 2020

—E-EF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
ARE T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REZFR(BE) PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (81,901) 104,110
HttzmkzE (BxX) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(EXPENSE)
RERBBEUEEFIESR Other comprehensive income/(expense)
BEizHMEEkE (FX): that may be reclassified to income
statement in subsequent periods:
HE R B R REAINET 2 Exchange differences on translation of
WEmk 2IEHZ5E financial statements of operations
outside Mainland China (8,795) 2,330
FEHM2E R (FAX) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR (8,795) 2,330
ERARAREREABRGERERE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
Wi (X)) #E (EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (90,696) 106,440

—E-FTEER  gg
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—E-FF+ = A=+ —H 31 December 2020

—EEH —E-NF
2020 2019
N3 ARET T AREFTT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W WEREE Property, plant and equipment 13 164,272 206,203
FREEE Right-of-use assets 14 525,271 626,080
ﬁA BEDTEIIRE Investment in a joint venture 5 5,979 8,556
EEFLIEE B Deferred tax assets 79 132,531 87,128
ERNHRE HERe R Prepayments, rental deposits and
HM&EE other asset 20 45,891 42526
RBEEHLEE Total non-current assets 873,944 970,493
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE Stocks 16 127,090 146,536
& Y BR 18 Accounts receivable 17 27,032 18,473
FEARIE LS RHEMEIW  Prepayments, deposits and other
fR1E receivables 20 102,687 110,082
EIRqEIE R Tax recoverable = 4128
ANFEfFE Deposit certificates 21 60,000 60,000
EMemEE Other financial assets 21 46,141 242,988
HeREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 22 402,621 252,900
RBEEHTE Total current assets 765,571 835,107
REBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
FEBRIE Accounts payable 18 118,727 129,166
HMEMNRERESER Other payables and accrued charges 23 312,971 328,696
fﬁ E8E& Lease liabilities 14 176,907 185,977
FE R IR Tax payable 23,382 12,859
REBAEEEE Total current liabilities 631,987 656,698
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 133,584 178,409

86 CHEEEERERAR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

—E-FHF 4= =+ —H 31 December 2020

—2=%F —ETNF
2020 2019
B it ARET T ARET T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
EEHABRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 1,007,528 1,148,902
kRBEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HeEaE Lease liabilities 14 576,740 603,075
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 19 17,379 22,666
kRBEBEREE Total non-current liabilities 594,119 625,741
BEE NET ASSETS 413,409 523,161
B EQUITY
RATREFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
JEAE #E = of the Company
BEITIRA Issued share capital 24 820,284 820,284
1 Reserves 27 (406,875) (297,123)
R s TOTAL EQUITY 413,409 523,161
BAERS MR
EY 7T 1B 48 56

SETO GIN CHUNG, JOHN

CHAIRMAN

HUNG MING KEI, MARVIN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEZZ-_FF+ZH=-+—HIL5FE Year ended 31 December 2020

ARARERAAES
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RERS
2% RtE RRBHE RE#  EARE EE BAREM RE
BA Bl BEORA AfREY XORE it i fE RRF AR

Shares held
Issued Share under share Share-based  Exchange Capital and
share  premium award Merger ~ payment fluctuation  Statutory other  Retained Total

capital account*  scheme* reserve*  reserve* reserve* reserve*  reserves*#*  profits* equity
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARBTR ARETR
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
(K £24)
(note 24)

R-Z-Zf& At 1 January 2020
-A—-H 820,284 3,046,507 (37,599)  (3,961,251) 23,505 (14,656) 12,406 110,150 523,815 523,161

TEEEE Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (81,901)  (81901)
AEEEMEE  Other comprehensive expense
B for the year:
BERPEAE  Exchange differences related
BANEBZ to translation of financial
HBaRL statements of operations
EXEE outside Mainland China - - - - - (8,795) - - - (8,795)
AEE2EHET  Total comprehensive expense
a8 for the year - - - = - @9 = - 1900 (90,696)

BB 2B E  Vesting of shares of share award

BT scheme - - 3944 - (5,582) - - - 1,638 -
BIREREEAN  Share options and awards
lapsed = = = = (1,545) = = = 1,545 =
NREEEZ Fquity-settled share-based
SRR 52 payments - - - - 2,886 - - - - 2,886
EREETHE  Tansfer to statutory reserve - - - - - - 7,623 - (7,623) -
“TNERERE  Final dividend for 2019
(W) (note 1) - (21,942 - o o o o o o (21,942
RZBZZE At 31 December 2020
+ZA=1-H 820,284 3,024,565 (33,655)  (3,961,251) 19,264 (23,451) 20,029 110,150 437,474 413,409

88 SEEEZERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-Z-FF+=-A=+—HBI5FJZ Year ended 31 December 2020

ARARERBAEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RER K
BT RiE KBS WG ERRD EE BARER (&
A B mAORG: A0EE" HEE il B REw BFr BEER

Shares held
Issued Share  under share Share-based  Exchange Capital and
share premium award Merger payment  fluctuation Statutory other Retained Total
capital account* scheme® reserve™ reserve* reserve* reserve®#  reserves*#  profits® equity

ARBFR ARETL ARBTTL ARETR ARETT ARETRL ARETR AREBTR ARETR ARETR
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBOOO

(ft 3524)
(note 24)
RZE-nE At 1 January 2019)

—-R-AH 820,284 3,097,863 (33091 (3961251 25215 (16986) 13406 110,150 415,074 470,564
RERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 104110 104110
AEEEMEE  Other comprehensive income

g for the year:

BERPEAEL  Exchange differences related

NEHZ to translation of financial

HBEEL statements of operations

EREE outside Mainland China - - - - - 2330 - - - 2330
REEZ2AME  Total comprehensive income

&% for the year - - - - - 2330 - - 104110 106440
BB EIBE  Vesting of shares of share award

b3 scheme - - 4510 - (3929 - - - (58) -
BERGEE: B Shares purchased under share

BEARS award scheme - - (8918) - - - - - - (8918)
BREXN Share options lapsed - - - - (421 - - - 491 -
NWRELE Fquity-settled share-based

AR 3 A payments - - - - 6431 - - - - 6431
BHAERE Release of statutory reserve - - - - - - (1,000) - 1000 -
ZE-\ERERS  Final dividend for 2018

() (note 1) - (51,356) - - - - - - - (51,356)
R-E-NE At 31 December 2019

+-F=t+-H 820,284 3,046,507 (37599)  (3961,251) 23,505 (14,656) 12406 110,150 523815 52361
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE—Z-FF+=-A=+—HILFJZ Year ended 31 December 2020

##

20

ZEREBEREBERAUBRARANBEZSE
T 58 A R#406,875000t (ZZE—hF: ARE
297,123,0007T) ©

AHBEEER - —FREBEHMEEHREBEAR
AlaHEEREEERARAA(EEHRE DN
B AN R#4,012,240000t (IR BEEAEAR
#%4,048,440,0007T 0% & B 1R & X {4 Queen Board
Limited Jz FLHE 22 A 89 B 30 A R #36,200,0007T) #8
HA B R/ IR A R #296,0007T & 8% 19345 B A
R #50,693,0007T 2 #5 °

REPEARAMB(HRE)ARE KB
MR ARB B LR HZEFEEERH
1% % A (K S5 AR EFE R 1R) 210% 5 #
ERERBES  BATHRBEESZEREDS
ERAMEARZ50% MIAERE TEBERN -
EERBESTANEEBEFEBRIEMNE
MEAR - A > RBAEERFREBEESER - HEHR
ROMBERBEEIMERZ50% e

EAREMHEREIZRBAFREESESZMEESL
ZEARGER -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

#H

These reserve accounts comprise the reserves in debit balance of
RMB406,875,000 (2019: RMB297,123,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

Merger reserve represents the excess of investment cost in a subsidiary,
Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited (“Hop Hing Fast Food"), of
RMB4,012,240,000 (being the total consideration of RMB4,048,440,000
reduced by the loans of RMB36,200,000 owed by Hop Hing Fast Food
to Queen Board Limited and its associates) over the share capital and
share premium of Hop Hing Fast Food of RMB296,000 and RMB50,693,000,

respectively, arising from the acquisition in 2012.

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"), the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of the annual statutory net profit after tax (after offsetting
any losses of prior years) to the statutory reserve fund. When the balance
of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of each entity’s registered capital,
any further appropriation is optional. The statutory reserve fund can be
utilised to offset losses of prior years or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must be maintained

at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital after such usage.

Capital and other reserves mainly represent the capital reserve arising

from group reorganisation in prior years.



mir\
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE_ZT-_TF+ZA=+—HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2020
et St ¥-3 —E-AfF
2020 2019
k3 ARBTR ARBFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

BRERExE

REXBZRERE

FREBLATR A (B 1R)
FRATIRBEHAE
S HA
%% B KRt &

EREEERE

W - BENREEBRE

R # [E])

EREEERE

& Us B TR (B

RIEHE 2 s
RBHEEZEERFER

Hip S REE 2 N FERKSE

Hih & EZ #iH

DiEaEDEZ N ES

A B #4688 2 AR S A+F

D, (8 0)
R L 5 4 41

BRARIE - RE - HEEER

E R H A& E R A (5 0)

FERTBRIEE 0, O 4)

H iR BRIE R AT & g0,

(%)
MERBHEIRE
B F 8
BB G B
B8 50 B R

BEEBBzReREFHE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax

Adjustments for:

Interest income 5
Finance costs 7
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment 6
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6
Impairment/(write-back of

impairment) of items of property,

plant and equipment 6
Impairment of right-of-use assets 6
Impairment of accounts receivable 6
Gain on termination of leases 6

Loss on disposal/write-off of

items of property, plant and

equipment, net 6
Fair value gain on other financial

assets 6
Amortisation of other asset 6
Share of profits and losses of joint

venture
Equity-settled shared-based

payment 6

Decrease/(increase) in stocks

Increase in accounts receivable

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits, other receivables and
other asset

Increase/(decrease) in accounts
payable

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accrued charges

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas tax paid

Net cash flows from operating
activities

(93,647) 151,747
(8,434) (5,960)
47,971 41,523
91,213 91,977

161,758 196,061
11,523 (1,031)
71,767 12,233

539 -
(1,062) (3,454)
13,542 10,308
(4,538) (8,851)
2,325 1,732
2,577 1,264
2,886 6,431
298,420 493,980
19,446 (51,053)
(9,098) (961)
1,705 (27,008)
(10,439) 16,558
(15,725) 35,072
284,309 466,588
8,434 5,960
(3,565) (2,722)
(20,728) (44,454)
268,450 425,372
—ECTEEFR 91
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZE-2F+=-A=1+—H8LFE Year ended 31 December 2020
—E-EHF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
k3 AR® T AR T
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
RETHZHERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
BEWE BMERREIER Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment (74,347) (124,437)
REARRETAN =@ A L Increase in time deposits with original
S HR 2 & BR1E RGN maturity of more than three
months when acquired (117,500) (11,000)
HithemEERD /(35S Decrease/(increase) in other financial
assets 201,385 (27,114)
KNEEIF BN Increase in deposit certificates = (60,000)
WEESHE,(FifE) 24  Net cash flows from/(used in)
= HE investing activities 9,538 (222,551)
METH2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
B EE KA Finance costs paid (47,971) (41,523)
AR B Dividends paid (21,942) (51,356)
RIER M EB I AM  Shares purchased under share award
scheme = (8,918)
HENRNEAES KD Principal portion of lease payments (167,059) (213,575)
MEFHMFEZIESREFEE  Net cash flows used in financing
activities (236,972) (315,372)
BeRBREESENEM NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
OR &) 38 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 41,016 (112,551)
REVNZBEERBESEED Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 160,400 271,160
iy 235 Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes, net (8,795) 1,791
REZEZHEEREELEEY  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 192,621 160,400
ReREASESEYAER DM ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AR R ATY 2 e & Cash and cash equivalents as stated
ReEEED in the consolidated statement of
financial position 402,621 252,900
W REBARREIN = AL L Less: Time deposits with original
| 2 E BRI 5K maturity of more than three
months when acquired 22 (210,000) (92,500)
RERESRERMI 2 E X Cash and cash equivalents as stated in
ReEEYD the consolidated statement of cash
flows 192,621 160,400

92 EEREEEZERERAR
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REAIREEHEHR
ARRAE—HRZZEZELFNA—HEHRAZ
HEAMK L 2BERAA - RAREMMHE
BE 2 #b i A Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands © ANA R E Z & B AL 0 B AEN
RITARE AN REE REFOWRE B K E2Er
NFE o

ARBZEBEBR/RREER - RAFE
A AREIHBRARMNEEERY BEME
RNEF X2 AEDEILE M EATEHRK]
MIkELEInREEERE ((REDEK -

TZ2MBARZFHBHN M RMKRM T4 -

R EE
ZEMBHBRRIIBRBEEBGIMAE (T
GBI AGDEM 2B EMBREEN(F
BUBHRELED(ETBEMERBME
WEEL - FASEMTE B SR
Lk#iE) BARRZERA UREE
NRAEPIZ W BEERGHE - ZFHBHRE
DERAELRAER LR  HRAFE
MEZHEBEREERKREFERIN - &
EUBBREAARETAREDZ2H - KX
BHHBHN MESEIRBEEREOIZT
T o

mEREE
RAEMBHRREF/ARA R ENE 2R (6
BAEB)BE-_T-_TF+=-_A=1+—H
LHFEZMBRER - WEBRREARTER
FEEREHOER(BEEBLCER) - EX
SEBRESEKEKE T WAEREEHMAE
AZLRRRKXFAAIZOE - W HARE
NERPWRETNEN (BIEERAKEE
BN TERKRETNERES IR
REF) R B Z LR - BNES Z 6 -

2.1

Bl 75 $R 2 Bl

Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 August 2007. The registered office address
of the Company is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Flats E & F, 2/F, Hop Hing
Building, 9 Ping Tong Street East, Tong Yan San Tsuen, Yuen Long,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
There was no significant change in the principal activities of
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year, which mainly
consisted of the operation of quick service restaurants (“QSR”)
business under the brand names of Yoshinoya and Dairy Queen
in Northern China.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for other financial assets and deposit certificates which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Income statement and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the income statement. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the income statement or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described
below:

(@  Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
"Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework
did not have any significant impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before
the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark
with an alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments
provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting
to continue during the period of uncertainty before
the introduction of the alternative RFR. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships
which are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (Continued)

(d)  Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
The amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong
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Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®
Insurance Contracts**

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®>

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41°

—E-FEER gy
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

B As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong

Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

B As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(FRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify
for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS
16 address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains
or losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk component.
The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on
an entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but
entities are not required to restate the comparative information.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest
in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by
the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date
will be determined after the completion of a broader review
of accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity's right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with specified conditions, the entity
has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property,
plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37 the cost of
fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate directly
to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract include
both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS
16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to
be applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other's behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
lllustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that any exists.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of a joint venture is included in
the consolidated income statement and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the joint
venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its joint venture is eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the joint venture, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint venture is included
as part of the Group's investment in a joint venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the events of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Intangible asset (other than goodwill)

Initial royalty

Initial royalty is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives
of 3 and 7 years.
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Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market
for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level T — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than stocks,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity),

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;



24 TESHHEBREE)

BEHEEAL(E)
) BALBEE MHATHEM—E
Wt (48)

vi) ZERX@FERIALTEBIZEE

HRZEH

vi) RE@OFF#EMNALTHERBBEEK
%:’?ﬂz%uz? BIZEEAEN
Hp—5KE: &

(vii) ZEBIEMBEEBNERK
BRAIAASRBRARENEQ
AIRHEI2EEABRE -

ME BERREBURRTE

ME BERRBDRKANBRFTER
TRBMERBEIE- WX  BEREKER
BRABEEBEERRSZBEEES
HEFERANEXZHBHERAMLE 2F
MEEAA -

ME- BMELRERBEHEERAEHRRELZ
X mERERREER  —REFARE
THEEMEZBERRA - WYX BE
ERBEZMNARTHETEE A&
EelzER o mRAREAREEAFH
ZEBIEEWREZFIRTE -

TEDNRBENE BEERREZMETA
FERAFH  KAEAREMERAE R
EBEFAE FERZEIZNEFENT:

B R E MR 209% £ 33.33%
FERETFEEE 209% 2 33.33%
HAOMEEE %70 40 F B3 5633.33%

(A& B %)

B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies: (Continued)

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33.33%
20% to 33.33%
Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 33.33%

Motor vehicles and other equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

@  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 2 to 20 years



24 TESHHEBREE)

HE(E)
AEEERABNA(E)
() HEEME

HEARERHEERKBERREEHNA
BIEH M ENFIRE T AR -
ENFERERNR(EELERN
I@ﬂ&ﬂﬁfﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁ
RFE B A R ey Al £ E R
@ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ@ﬁ%iﬁmiﬁ GiE!
ENFNEBRAEESERE
BEEERNTEEREHBRRA
SETERKLIEERZER AR
IFHHEMETR » THURHE B A =R
MR EEENREHREBRENRNE
iR IR AR AR X

R EHENRHRER

W R EERETE J$EIE%E
Bt ARNIEEBERMNKRGFE
R HEE ﬁ%%%@%%%m&
BRT A BB R - ER A RIRR T AT
HEE SR - I - WEFEEES
feek - HERRE (Flanh s A
RSB B ARKHEENHE
BENBEEENEERTME

A EHERGENER@E -

© KHHHBEREEEZEZEHE
SREHERREHES ST
IUAETESBEEEENEHH

ERAEHEHE®mAH R -

EAKEREEEEEVEER
AEEZEMNEEEERERGEA

EEXRE -

MHHERRKEEEERECHE
%Eﬁ%@&ﬁ%i%ﬁﬁw%ﬁ

o

B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g,,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option).

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the income
statement and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in
other comprehensive income is recycled to the income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the income statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value profit or loss are also recognised as other income
in the income statement when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e. removed from the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") ECLs for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group applies the low credit risk simplification. At
each reporting date, the Group evaluates whether the debt
investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Group
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

—E_TEFR 115
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 = Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable and contract assets that do not contain
a significant financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable and contract assets that contain a
significant financing component and lease receivables, the Group
chooses as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs with policies as described above.



24 TESHHEREME(E)

TREE

BAERRE
THMABBERMAERRT D BERERRER
S ETERIA -

TRABEORERNERFEAFENE -0
BEREEREEMER  ROREERRE
HZRBA

AEEZERMEBERRBRENERE - EMEM
fRIE EFTER  UREERE-

A&

BEBHAAGTEZEHEE

RERERR  TEERLERERAER
MEFIRBHER A E  ERRZFE
TRAIBRSN - FERIER T - RRAAANSIER - B
Al MEERAERURRAR  B68E
BRAM R BHBIEPERaRER -

B A E R R B 2 TR eOR(E
AR BRERFREKED D&M AR
BitHE c ERNERBEDFTABRGERZBE
AR

BEEREmMAE
SRAMNZRER 2 BERERHHRE
R BUR R -

ERATRARRS HKEBR—EEAE
FEREATRZEMAEMDRNL - HRAE
BZBERARERNER  ZFERBRIEFTIA
BOEHRERRBERERFTEERE 48
AREECEENBRRAER -

B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable, other
payables and accrued charges, and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

“ECEEEHR 117
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired or issued to the
trustee of the Company’s share award scheme and held by the
Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly in equity at cost.
No gain or loss is recognised in the income statement on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity
instruments.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside the income statement
is recognised outside the income statement, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

—E_TEFR 119
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale from QSR business
Revenue from the operation of QSR business is recognised at the
point in time when the products are delivered to the customers.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is made or
a payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using an appropriate pricing model, further details of which are
given in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the income statement for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting conditions.
Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award
and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial
to the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options and share awards
is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the
end of the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following year.
An accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year
by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme, namely, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as to
use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, while the
Company’s functional currency is HKS. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e, translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or the income statement is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or the income
statement, respectively).

“E-2FFHR 125
Annual Report 2020



B} 755 ¥ 2% Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

126

TEETHREBREGE)

9I\ﬁ’é‘(@

ERBHEE RAXIWMANTHER
%E%ﬁ%tﬁwﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁm% = #
HEEIFEBHEREBNRAR - 115R5
AMAASENIHABNKERELED
FEBUEEERFEEEABNAH - 4
FHEZRBENRIBEF  AKEETH
AERESNIWBMRENRZEH -

ETHEBARZREERLIFARY - Rk
EHR AHERZEERAGRREES
RZEZFBE/ARE  HEBEmKRAEAN
FEZMEFHEZBESARE

I%ﬁFEZER%ﬁKA@EEW i
R WRE KB HEE R - HEXHKE
BRZAEEBzEME2mKSEAREO S
ERERPHER

REARERERMS  MBARZRESR
ERRERNERMZEXRESARE -
MBARBFEFELAZRERENRA
FEZMEFHEZSRESARE

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries are currencies
other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of an operation, the component
of other comprehensive income relating to that particular
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and the
Uncertainty about these

and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures,
disclosure of contingent liabilities.
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or whether the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has
to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may affect
the asset value, or such an event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the net present value of future cash flows, which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in cash flow projections, could have a material
effect on the net present value used in the impairment test.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Such estimates involve consideration
of the possibility and outcome of the objections to the estimated
assessment or additional assessment issued by the tax authority.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in the production and provision of services, or from
a change in the market demand for the product or service output
of the asset, expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear
and tear, care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are shorter than previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. Details of the deferred tax assets
are contained in note 19 to the financial statements.

Provision for slow-moving stocks and net realisable
value of stocks

Management reviews the ageing analysis of stocks of the Group
at the end of each reporting period, and make provisions for
slow-moving stock items if needed. Net realisable value of stocks
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated selling expenses. These estimates are based on
the current market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of a similar nature. Management reassesses
these estimates at each reporting date. The carrying amount
of stocks at 31 December 2020 was RMB127,090,000 (2019:
RMB146,536,000). Further details are contained in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Valuation of share options

The fair value of options granted under the share option scheme
is determined using the binomial model. The significant inputs
in determining the fair values include the weighted average
share price at the grant date, exercise price, risk-free interest rate,
dividend vyield, expected volatility, expected life of options, and
exit rate of directors and staff. Further details are given in note 25
to the financial statements.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not
in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Operating Segment Information

The Group's primary operating segment is the QSR business. In
addition, the QSR business’ revenue and non-current assets, other
than deferred tax assets, are predominantly attributable to a single
geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no analysis by
geographical region is presented.

Turnover and Other Income and Gains,
Net

EEH2OWMBMT: An analysis of turnover is as follows:
—F=%F —TNF
2020 2019
AR®B T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000

BEE -EBEESHOWZE Turnover - revenue from contracts with
customers

RE-—BHEBEERD Sale of products, at a point in time 1,590,270 2,102,814

SEEEZERERAT
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BEENHEHMBARKZEFEE 5. Turnover and Other Income and Gains,

(42 Net (Continued)
pa .
BEESHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
() DFWa EF (i)  Disaggregated revenue information
—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
m R Brands
FHX Yoshinoya 1,350,326 1,782,062
KEEFE Dairy Queen 177,337 230,809
Hh Others 62,607 89,943
1,590,270 2,102,814
i & 5% Geographical markets
dbm — XE —Adt4 Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Province
e [@m Metropolitan Region 1,167,975 1,568,417
E A B AL 5 i [ Other northern areas of China’e® 422,295 534,397
1,590,270 2,102,814
Mat: BFEEE  BEIREMREUAR Note: Including Liaoning, Heilongjiang and Jilin provinces and
NELERRER Inner Mongolia autonomous region
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5.

Turnover and Other Income and Gains,

Net (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)
() /BAIEIT (i) Performance obligations
HE K Sale of goods
AEBEZEREHENBLELERTETES The Group sells goods directly to customers via stores and
ERMERHEEED BORTRE online food order platforms. The performance obligation is
mMRXTEERERN KXZERBERHE satisfied when the products are delivered to the customers.
BEEmIENIHEN - (BTN Payment of a transaction price is due immediately when
ReMABENRTEEE - a customer purchases the goods. The payment is usually
settled in cash or using online payment platforms.
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Hthlh ARWK = FHE Other income and gains, net
B WA Interest income 8,434 5,960
HihemEEZAFERZ  Fair value gain on other financial assets 4,538 8,851
PE W Z R FRE Foreign exchange differences, net 11,400 (5,020)
HE Compensation 173 212
BT 8 Bh & * Government grants* 9,916 3,358
Hity Others 4,693 4,337
39,154 17,698
* BN#ESeERAEEL S HEST * Government grants represent the subsidies received from
B 2 75 5 B) J2 JE 201978 R 8 B R the local government for the Group's business activities
R AT i 4E 0 77 BRI CER 9 #R B o carried out locally and support under the COVID-19
RERBNESNFE AL ER pandemic. There were no unfulfilled conditions during the
ERRERM - year in which they were recognised.
EEEEEZERERAR

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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6. Profit/(Loss) from Operating Activities

The Group's profit/(loss) from operating activities is arrived at after

A) charging/(crediting):
—E-EE —ZT—hF
2020 2019
AR T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
& X =555 Foreign exchange differences, net (11,400) 5,020
BEEFEZEEK A Direct cost of stocks sold* 586,387 715,113
HEMEME - BERRE Loss on disposal/write-off of items of
HEZBEFS property, plant and equipment, net 13,542 10,308
EERAAZ(BREESR Employee benefit expenses
FETBABME (Hi8) - (including directors’ and chief
executive’s emoluments (note 8)):
T& N5 Wages and salaries 310,242 390,516
RIKE 5T 8 Fo Pension scheme contributions** 76,510 90,621
LA B i 48 B 2 BR 0 2 A+t Equity-settled share-based payments 2,886 6,431
389,638 487,568
ME - BEREREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 91,213 91,977
FRAREERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 161,758 196,061
V- BELEKHEIEE Z Impairment/(write-back of impairment)
W E R E B [B) = of items of property, plant and
equipment*** 11,523 (1,031)
& & &= R E Impairment of right-of-use assets*** 71,767 12,233
FEUR BR TERUE (A7 2L 17) Impairment of accounts receivable
(note 17) 539 -
Hfth & 2= 5 Amortisation of other asset 2,325 1,732
REAHEBEFENHEENF  Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities 23,655 35,388
mIEHE k&= Gain on termination of leases (1,062) (3,454)
% SN B & Auditor’s remuneration 2,385 2,628
N ERRFE Fair value gain, net
- BREBEREAFEARZ - Other financial assets at fair value
HEthemEE through profit or loss (4,538) (8,851)
—E-TFFHR 133

Annual Report 2020



B} 755 ¥ 2% Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

6. KEHER (EE)(E) 6.
Hiat -

* EEFEZEERAFAGARERADN
[EERAF -

** RZEZZTF+_A=1+—H KXEEWL
B QU FR AT A LA R IR R PR AF ) R PR AR
KEFEHRK(ZE—NF:#)-

 ZEBHFAGAEERANESRE
ERLME ] -
7. BMERX 7.
BUE K AT :

Profit/(Loss) from Operating Activities

(Continued)

Notes:

* Direct cost of stocks sold is included in “Cost of sales” in the

consolidated income statement.

** At 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to reduce its future contributions to the pension schemes

in future years (2019: Nil).

***  These items were included in “Impairment of non-financial assets”

in the consolidated income statement.

Finance Costs
An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

g 33 —E-hF

2020 2019

ARETRT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

RITREBRA R HM Bank financing charges and others 253 526
HEAEMNE Interest on lease liabilities 47,718 40,997
47,971 41,523
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EERITHEAZHNE 8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Emoluments

RAFEERE ETWARR - BEERRGIIE Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, disclosed

383(N@) ~ (b) ~ OROER AR (K EEERF pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the

HEGEOI BN BB ESRITHABH Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

B (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

are as follows:

—B2%%
2020
Kigea/
% 2ER HRE ARBEEL s
e EUNE  HARA RGXN  SEER HeAE

Salaries, Discretionary/

allowances performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses payment contributions remuneration

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR®Tn AR%T:n
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

@ BYUFHTES (a) Independent non-executive
directors
Al fERT Seto Gin Chung, John 294 - - - - 294
k& Sze Tsai To, Robert 25 - - - - 25
VaE o Shek Lai Him, Abraham* 82 - - - - 82
it S Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 245 = = = = 25
866 - - - - 866
b) BTES (b) Executive directors
EHE Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 1,780 1,919 - - - 3,699
ECES Wong Kwok Ying - 1,014 = (293) 81 802
1,780 2933 - (293) g1 4,501
O FHTES () Non-executive director
WEH Lam Fung Ming, Tammy 27 - - - - 27
* Eg s ra+rBRTEBYIERNITES - * Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, ass, J retired as an independent non-
RZEZEFANAZHARAIRRAFK executive director with effect from the conclusion of the annual
EHEREEMS - general meeting of the Company on 2 June 2020.
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8. EERITHARMNE (& 8. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Emoluments (Continued)
“E0F
2019
mEEa/

Fe o BHR BRA WREREZ pednea
ae  BEWNE  BHRL  RHXN  HEAER  #HegH
Salaries,  Discretionary/
allowances  performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses payment  contributions  remuneration

ARBTT ARBTRL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000

@ BYUFHTES (a) Independent non-executive

directors
ki3 Seto Gin Chung, John 291 - - (61) - 230
LER Sze Tsai To, Robert 243 - - (@) - 182
R Shek Lai Him, Abraham 194 - - (61) - 133
atth S Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 3 - - 61 - 182
971 - - (244) - 727
b) BTEES (b) Executive directors
HRE Hung Ming Kei, Marvin 1764 2,656 - - - 4420
ECES Wong Kwok Ying - 1507 - (323) 121 1305
1,764 4163 - (323 121 5725
0 FBTES (c) Non-executive director
HEH Lam Fung Ming, Tamrmy % - - - - 2%
FAMBESRTHBEBEREXRAE There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
BEEMEME 2 25 - executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.
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hEREFHESR 9. Five Highest Paid Employees
REAFEhE&EaTEEE@EH2EHN The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid employees,
FXHissr—H(ZE—LF - MELZ)ES)) including one (2019: two) director whose emolument is set out in
ZHEmmmT note 8 above, for the year are as follows:
—EEHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR® T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Fe EEREKHEMMNS Salaries, allowances and other
emoluments 6,824 9,710
B 5 TEAL /B RIBE 9T Discretionary/performance related
bonuses 1,684 1,319
AR E 2 B 195K Equity-settled share-based payments 499 (648)
RIRE T2 R Pension scheme contributions 346 405
9,353 10,786
LB e mT The above emoluments are analysed as follows:
EEHE
Number of employees
—E_EH —E-NhF
2020 2019
75 #1,000,0017T 2 /& 1,500,000 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 1
75 11,500,001 7T 2 78 #2,000,0007T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
75 #2,000,0017C £ 78 #£2,500,0007T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
75 #2,500,0017T & 7% #3,000,0007T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 - -
75 53,000,001 7T 2 78 #3,500,0007T HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 - -
7 #3,500,0017T 2 74 4,000,000 7T HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 - -
75 #4,000,0017T & /& #4,500,0007C HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
75 #4,500,0017C 2 78 #5,000,0007T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 - -
75 #55,000,0017T & 78 #55,500,0007C HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 - 1
5 5
—E-TFFHR 137
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10.

138

Fr &%
EENGRDIREBEFAERTBEL ZMET
JE SR B a FIHR B 16.5% (ZF— N4 < 16.5%)
TEH A - EASE—EMMB QR AR
BREGFHETHEERERKIN - it
BERBFEMNIHRBADEAEERZEE
FAERZBRAMEE -

AEBRTEARBELE ZHERRFAR
% % A B R4 A #9259 AR T B 4 5 P
B EP—RUEREXBNMBLARN
“E-NFEBRRRBEEEMSHRBE RS
e

REEFEREIL, (E%) 0EBARHBH
mF

10. Income Tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates.

The PRC corporate income tax rate for the Group's subsidiaries
operated in Mainland China during the year was 25% on their
taxable profits. One of the subsidiaries engaged in agricultural
business was entitled to exemption from the standard income tax
rate in 2019.

The major components of the income tax expense/(credit) for the
year are as follows:

—F=%F —EF-NF
2020 2019
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BH — &% Current — Hong Kong
KEZH Charge for the year 2,855 1,877
PAfE 2 B RE B Overprovision in prior years (247) (546)
2,608 1,331
BVER — E b= Current — Elsewhere
REZI Charge for the year 23,500 46,638
LAFEREBETR Underprovision in prior years 11,580 1,538
35,080 48,176
RIE (B iE19) Deferred (note 19) (49,434) (1,870)
REMBHZE (K R)EE  Total income tax charge/(credit)
for the year (11,746) 47637

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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10. Income Tax (Continued)

effective tax rate is as follows:

B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/
(loss) before tax at the statutory rates, ranging from 16.5% to 25%,
for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

i —ENF
2020 2019
ARE T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BRBE AR (E518) Profit/(loss) before tax (93,647) 151,747
HEBAREGE 2 IE Tax at the applicable tax rate (15,452) 25,038
EMalzERITRMEZFE  Effect of different tax rates in other
jurisdiction (9,183) 12,169
H/E R WA Income not subject to tax (190) (203)
AFIRBEE X Expenses not deductible for tax 4,483 4,810
WEFEREBETR Underprovision in respect of prior years 1,333 992
HAEERBEWBEARADIE  Effect of withholding tax on the
w A B TE IR 2 & distributable profits of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries (4,031) 3,643
FERHIEE B Tax losses not recognised 1,294 1,188
BALSEETBRMEGTEZBIE  Tax charge/(credit) at the Group's
it OR %) effective rate (11,746) 47,637

Bk 77 TR A RE B BT AR A R e BB Y B
NAETTHRA AR MR EBORGRE -
ERNBBRAEDEETH  BRETHEE -
HEZSFVBBRRULERY  ARFEER
RYBHRRPIIETEOVAES

The PRC local tax authority currently carries out tax inspections
on certain subsidiaries of the Company in relation to previous tax
periods. In view that the tax case is still in progress, the outcome
is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the directors of the Company consider that adequate

tax provision has been made in the financial statements.

—E—F

—=—=
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1. B2 11. Dividends
—2=%F —TNF
2020 2019
AR® T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
MAFEAZRNORE : Dividends paid during the year:
—E-NFZREKE Final dividend for 2019
— BRE @ AR0.248E ML - HK0.248 cent (2018: HK0.61 cent) per
(ZZ—N\F 06178 1L) ordinary share* 21,942 51,356
BORARE R B Proposed final dividend:
E\(ZZF—NF 02485 10) Nil (2019: HK0.248 cent) - 22,327

12. ARAREFBEAERESRE
M, (BE)

140

HE_ZT-TFR-_F-NF+ZA=1+— *
BtEERNZ-_ZE—NER_ZT—N\EF

KER BB ETEBRRNT 2R E
TREZTARBERDERSEEFEZE

T o

SREXEF (FE) (a)
BREAEEIDREFRARNAEKRE

A AELEE EE ARS1,901,000
TT(ZE—NF  mH A K¥104,110,000
TEFREEITE @R Z MEF

5 2975455780 (= T — N F:
9,749,007,486 8% ) 5T & + I AL #H 5 DA IR
BRERRRNRMNZETEMERTDN

A% 15 # B304,473,930f% (—Z & — L F -

337477994 %) -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

Final dividends for 2019 and 2018 paid during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 represented the dividends paid for
the issued ordinary shares, excluding treasury shares held by the
trustee under the share award scheme.

12. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Company

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company of RMB81,901,000 (2019: profit of
RMB104,110,000), and the weighted average number of
9,754,557,802 (2019: 9,749,007486) ordinary shares in issue
during the vyear, as adjusted to reflect the number of shares
of 304,473,930 (2019: 337477994) held under the share
award scheme of the Company.
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12. XTI REFEAELEBRE
(B8 (E)

b) BREBERF (FE)

12. Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company

(Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

BE_Z-_TF+_A=1T—HLF
B AROmARTRZBRESRE
JIBREXRBERE R BHETE
RARR 2RO EBEM2IZ2E
REABRSRARBEZE WX
BB EMEM2 2BRELREE
THRELFE -

BE-_FT-NF+-_A=1t—HLHF
g - tHx%%Ef'JE$ETF¢W$

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented in
respect of a dilution as (i) the impact of the share options
outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amount presented and (i) the impact of the share
awards of the Company had an anti-dilutive effect on the
basic loss per share amount presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation of
diluted profit per share is based on the consolidated profit

AREBEABGLEERFIARE for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
104,110,0007T 2 B #& 1T E W AR 2 InfEF of RMB104,110,000 and the weighted average number of
809,853,728 801k 5T & - WHATE A 9,853,728,801 ordinary shares in issue after adjusting for the
BRES R 2 EEAR1047213158 T effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares of 104,721,315

HBE - HEHRMT

calculated as follows:

—E-EF —h4
2020 2019
ARETR AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AAFIEHERE B AE(E4REA  Consolidated profit/(loss) attributable to
wm AL (EsiE) equity holders of the Company (81,901) 104,110
% & e
Number of shares
;v Shares —E-EF —h4
2020 2019
FAGTESKREREF Z  Weighted average number of ordinary
FA E?’V‘TT 3 % o0 HE shares in issue during the year used in
T B the basic earnings per share calculation 9,754,557,802 9,749,007,486
HEo B - TBER Effect of dilution — weighted average
INAE S5 & number of ordinary shares:
AR 17 22 B Share awards TERAN/A 100,973,224
e i Share options T FAN/A 3,748,091
9,754,557,802 9,853,728,801
“ECEREFEHR . 141
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13. 1% BERRE 13. Property, Plant and Equipment
A -
RER BE#HER
Hibxs HEWEEE et
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures and
and other leasehold
equipment improvements Total
ARE T ARE TR ARE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E-EF+ZHA=+—H 31 December 2020
B Cost:
RZEZZTF—HF—H At 1 January 2020 338,182 584,938 923,120
NE Additions 21,983 52,364 74,347
HE s Disposals/write-off (49,259) (34,955) (84,214)
ME 5, o B Exchange realignment (21) (21) (42)
N_Z2ZETF+A=+—H At 31 December 2020 310,885 602,326 913,211
RErTERRE: Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
NW_ZE_ETF—H—H At 1 January 2020 237,745 479,172 716,917
FAEE Provided during the year 24,524 66,689 91,213
& Disposals/write-off (39,579) (31,093) (70,672)
BB Impairment - 11,523 11,523
FE 35 3 % Exchange realignment (21) (21) (42)
RZEZFF+_HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 222,669 526,270 748,939
BREFE: Net book value:
RZE-_EF+-_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 88,216 76,056 164,272

142 GEEEZRERAT
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13. Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)
RIE -
RER BEEE R
HihZE HEMEERE m@Et
Motor Furniture,
vehicles fixtures and
and other leasehold
equipment improvements Total
ARBT T AR T AR T
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—E-hF+=ZHA=+—H 31 December 2019
X $ : Cost:
- NF—A—H 1 January 2019 333,322 517,747 851,069
™ ﬁ Additions 34,635 89,802 124,437
k- € Disposals/write-off (29,781) (22,617) (52,398)
ME 8 B Exchange realignment 6 6 12
RZE—NF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 338,182 584,938 923,120
RETTERRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZE—NnF—H—H At 1 January 2019 237,239 430,812 668,051
FNEAE Provided during the year 26,230 65,747 91977
& 8E Disposals/write-off (25,729) (16,361) (42,090)
BE EE Write-back of impairment - (1,031) (1,031)
ME 5, o B Exchange realignment 5 5 10
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 237,745 479172 716,917
BRMEFE: Net book value:
RZE-—NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 100,437 105,766 206,203

EAEki_v_’?fﬁ-f—*ﬂ:-f—*EIU:EFg

AR A R1,523,0007T (ZE—N4E 5
{E#E A R #1,031,0007T) 815 % ?i%iﬁﬂi
EHNYE BELESBERAAEMREZE

AlEEE R-FT_FF+_A=1+—H
B i 51 AT U =) & B8 THAR $5 (€ F12.0%
U 1 11.5%) B BE 3R R 5115 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁ
BE -

“ECTEER
Annual Report 2020

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment loss of
RMB11,523,000 (2019: write-back of impairment of RMB1,031,000)
represented the write-down of the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment for certain underperforming stores to their
recoverable amounts. The estimated recoverable amounts as at

1 December 2020 were determined based on their value in use
amounts estimated by using a discount rate of 12.0% (2019: 11.5%).

143
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14. A&
AEBAEHEA
AEBBEERLCLELRNSBBRD=YE -
BEMEHNEESY -HERAETWE -
BEEREHMNBEEBEA2E20F - —Km
T REETAEELHEARERANNE
EEE -ETHEANBEERREILE

ERNBR R ZHHENT -

14. Leases
The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for various items of office premises,
warehouses and stores used in its operations. Leases of office
premises, warehouses and stores generally have lease terms
between 2 and 20 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

¥ Certain lease contracts have terms which include extension and

termination options and variable lease payments.

@ HERE @  Right-of-use assets
AEBEFERAREECREBERERSE The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
NN : the movements during the year are as follows:

EF Buildings
—E-EF —ET-NF
2020 2019
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
®n—H—H At 1 January 626,080 628,662
MEE New leases 181,834 218,692
wIFHE Termination of leases (15,577) (12,980)
HEBE Lease modification (33,541) -
MEMZ Depreciation charge (161,758) (196,061)
A Impairment (71,767) (12,233)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 525,271 626,080

REE-ZE-_FTF+-_A=+—HILF
g REEE ARE7,7670007T (=
—NF AR®E12,23300070) B E T
FERENEENEREEERmME
MR zHA KBl eEE R_E_ZF
T A=+ —HMHEFATRESET
B EE120% (ZZE—HE:115%) 8
BRI EAEFBENERERETE -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment
loss of RMB71,767,000 (2019: RMB12,233,000) represented the
write-down of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets
for certain underperforming stores to their recoverable
amounts. The estimated recoverable amounts as at 31
December 2020 were determined based on their value in
use amounts estimated by using a discount rate of 12.0%
(2019: 11.5%).
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14. Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Lease liabilities
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities and
during the year are as follows:

the movements

BF Buildings
—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T ARBFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
®n—HA—H At 1 January 789,052 800,369
MEE New leases 181,834 218,692
WIEHE Termination of leases (16,639) (16,434)
HEBE Lease modification (33,541) -

F R R EIGN Accretion of interest recognised

during the year 47,718 40,997
3% Payments (214,777) (254,572)
W+=ZA=+—8 At 31 December 753,647 789,052

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:

—E-EF —ZE-hF
2020 2019
ARB T ARBF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
DT AR RE Analysed into payable

—FR Within one year 176,907 185,977
FF In the second year 141,536 152,190

FE=—FFAF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BIEERMF) 248,252 270,803
A AF Beyond five years 186,952 180,082
W+=—A=+—BZE®EE  Carying amount at 31 December 753,647 789,052
B R E A Less: current portion (176,907) (185,977)
EmB D Non-current portion 576,740 603,075
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14. HE(~Z 14. Leases (Continued)
KEBAARBEAE) The Group as a lessee (Continued)
© RPUREFEREEREZHAZ WK () The expenses/(income) recognised in the income statement
AT in relation to leases are as follows:
g 33 —E-hNF
2020 2019
AR® TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBGENE Interest on lease liabilities 47,718 40,997
TREEERESH Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets 161,758 196,061
EHEEHEERAX Expense relating to short-term leases 613 1,246
Kt ATHEGEAEMAEM  Variable lease payments not included in
ER® the measurement of lease liabilities 23,042 34,142
B E W s Gain on termination of leases (1,062) (3,454)
(@) MEZHRSRLBHERTBHREM T (@) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 29 to
20H 55 o the financial statements.
15. AEELEZRE 15. Investment in a Joint Venture
—E-FE —ZT—hF
2020 2019
AR% Tt ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DIEFEE Share of net assets 5,979 8,556
REBEGEDLEZFHBOT: Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:
&R
£78 HiE EMRE £ BEEASL TEEXK
Percentage
Particulars of Place of registration of ownership
Name capital held and business interest Principal activities
REGEETHRREBR AR AR FEHEAH 51% K IREE
10,200,0007T
RMB10,200,000 PRC/Mainland China Fast food restaurant
operation
B ERAREHERSE - The above investment is indirectly held by the Company.

146 FEREEZRERAF
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15. REELEZRE(E) 15. Investment in a Joint Venture (Continued)
TRIFEAEEGEREZENETTERXR The following table illustrates the financial information of the
B BT T B K Group’s joint venture that is not individually material:

—E-EE —ZT—hF
2020 2019
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DIREECERFERE Share of the joint venture's loss for the year (2,577) (1,264)
AEDHEECELEEIBAZE Share of the joint venture's total
comprehensive loss for the year (2,577) (1,264)
AEBRAGETCEZREIRMA  Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
®’E investment in the joint venture 5,979 8,556
16. 7 & 16. Stocks
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JR Raw materials 105,971 127,230
HAE S Consumables 21,119 19,306
127,090 146,536
17. B BRIE 17. Accounts Receivable
—ECEH —E-NF
2020 2019
ARETR ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
& W BR 18 Accounts receivable 27,571 18,473
B RE Less: impairment (539) -
27,032 18,473
REB7REEGFEURSETHE - K The Group’s QSR products are mainly sold on a cash basis.
SEREXBCEBEEFZZRKAES Accounts receivable of the Group’s QSR business were mainly
EEHOBRN A S RE LT RBHER due from shopping malls and internet platform service providers
BRIE - R RHEERERE T HAIEL with credit terms within 60 days. Overdue balances are reviewed
4 regularly by senior management.

“E-RFEFHR 147
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17.

148

FE W BRIE (42
B8R E A AR R 5 B 0 B S 9
ik 2 BKERE 2 Rl AT T -

Accounts Receivable (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the transaction date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—E-oSE —E—hEF

2020 2019

AR® T AR F T

RMB’000 RMB'000

& A A Within 1 month 26,026 17,769
12218 A 1 to 2 months 1,006 704
27,032 18,473

R BRI R BB EBEESH T

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

—F=%F —ETNF
2020 2019
ARBT T ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REH] At the beginning of year -
BB B 18 (I i26) Impairment losses (note 6) 539 -
RER At the end of year 539

AEBERATEMB RS ERFORAE
ZAEEBEEBERIEHRENBLS
% BRI RLATA EARIA R B 2
EHMBEEE AGHEFRHEEER B
WHRB R DEEERRFB L EHEH
D AEBEFEENEEERERKEE
BESLEBEELAAEEERMELAR -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

The Group has applied the simplified approach for impairment in
calculating ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected loss provision for all accounts receivable. To
measure the ECLs, accounts receivable have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
Group considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward-
looking information in calculating the expected credit loss rate.
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Accounts Receivable (Continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group'’s accounts receivable using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

—F
DR =@A B
B HA — @A Z 5 =@A et
Past
Less than due 1 to Over
Current 1 month 3 months 3 months Total
BHEEEEER Expected credit loss rate = = = 100% 1.95%
B E Gross carrying amount
(ARETT) (RMB'000) 26,026 - 1,006 539 27,571
TEAEEEE Expected credit losses
(AR®FT) (RMB'000) = = - 539 539

RZB-NAF+ZA=+—H AEEMHE
FEW AR 2 TR I 1R 1R - T BFR
BHGHIREHNEEBRES -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group estimated that the expected
loss rate of accounts receivable was minimal and no ECL allowance
in respect of these balances was made.

FEBRIE 18. Accounts Payable

RBEHL  REINHBZEFEE 2R An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of the
oM reporting period, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

—E-RF —E-NF

2020 2019

ARETR ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

BNEA R A R60R Current and less than 60 days 111,753 111,215

HiBdeoH Over 60 days 6,974 17951

118,727 129,166

ENEETGE  —RRNTF7EEORZ

EEHRBE

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled within credit terms of 7 to 90 days.
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19.

150

i 5 7 8

FAZELERBRBEREEZHNT

19. Deferred Tax

year were as follows:

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

EEBHEAE Deferred tax liabilities
FEREEE TEH HBE
Right-of-use Withholding
assets taxes Total
ARBFT AREF T AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R=ZFE—NF—H—H At January 2019 157,166 21,108 178,274
FRNB A, (GEA)EZF  Charged/(credited) to the income
= (Htatio0) statement during the year (note 10) (646) 3,643 2,997
FLAPE A B AGIEL  Withholding tax paid on repatriation
ZEMMIAT 2B of earnings from subsidiaries in
Mainland China - (1,844) (1,844)
P& W FE R Exchange realignment - (241) (241)
RZZE—hF+=A At 31 December 2019 and
=t+—HBRERZZZ=FHF 1 January 2020
—H—H 156,520 22,666 179,186
FAFTABERE Credited to the income statement
(Bt at10) during the year (note 10) (4,202) (4,031) (8,233)
FLARBI A B A F]EH  Withholding tax paid on repatriation
ZEMMIAT 2B of earnings from subsidiaries in
Mainland China - (1,256) (1,256)
R-ZTE-ZTF At 31 December 2020
+—-—A=+—H 152,318 17,379 169,697
EEEEEZERERAR

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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EERIE(ZE 19. Deferred Tax (Continued)
EERIEEE Deferred tax assets
B HE
CEEEAR
i 7 & A RIEM
MEEKSE ERMEER M EE HESR Bt
Temporary

difference of

provisions,
impairment,
Tax credit not  accruals and
utilised  depreciation Tax losses  Lease liabilities Total
ARBFT AREFTT AREFTT ARETT AREFRT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZ-1E-A—H At 1 January 2019 1475 37,60 - 200,092 238,727
FREA(FIRE)BEE  Credited/(charged) to the income
BB H10) statement during the year (note 10) 1994 5702 - (2,829) 4,867
[ 5% Fxchange realignment 54 - - - 54
RZE-NFETZA At 31 December 2019 and
ol = e i 323 1 January 2020
—A—H 3523 42,862 - 197,063 243,648
FREA/(FIBRE)EBEER  Credited/(charged) to the income
2 BB K i 10) statement during the year (note 10) (316) 24,933 25435 (8.851) 41,01
R-ZB_ZF At 31 December 2020
+-A=+t—8H 3,207 67,795 25435 188,412 284,849
REME ETEEMEEERAED For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
ERRGEHBMRARFEE - T AR liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
SEREEMIBAESR 2O KERBRE financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
i balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR TR ARBFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
RERE BN R ER Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
FIRELEHIEE E consolidated statement of financial
position 132,531 87128
RiZaHBMRAKPBERZ Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
FRERIEEE the consolidated statement of financial
position (17,379) (22,666)
FELEHMIBEE Net deferred tax assets 115,152 64,462
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EEBIH(Z)
EEHBEEE)
RIBAFBRCEMESR L RAPBEAMAAKZ
ZHONEEFRELEMINEIREETIRREEA
0% BRTEINR - WA TR N\F—
A—BRES TEAR-_ZEZLF+=A4
=t+—REZEN - Bl REBEBEER
REBERMKY 2B RARIR T N\F—
A—BREAZEMNADIERKREHTTE
MF - W BN B HNE I & & 2 B AR
BREAHMBGL  AERRE BN/
Ko ghAREEME « #EAKER%&I0% °

7R 2% B i) EL R RO A5 BB A B 5 P 45 R
‘'R -

AT -TEF-F=1+—H KEBEESE
RN BB ER BN EEEARKE
48,360,0007C (= & — JLF : A K #43,312,000
J0) - AR A B AR MR IRERFE -
MR R A TNKA R EEERFME - Bt
RERBELEHBEE -

SEEEZERERAT
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19.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 December 2020, the Company had tax losses of
RMB48,360,000 (2019: RMB43,312,000) arising in Hong Kong that
were available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the relevant company. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available.
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20. ERIE - &€  HMEWER  20. Prepayments, Deposits, Other

HRHEMWEE Receivables and Other Asset
Z_TF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR TR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B FRIR Prepayments 13,773 12,904
bigeia Deposits 59,766 62,184
H b & U BR I8 Other receivables 68,750 70,168
Hi&EE Other asset 6,289 7,352
148,578 152,608
W ETATERIEIE ~ & M EAMh  Less: Current portion included
FE W AR 18 2 BN ER EB f9 in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables (102,687) (110,082)
FEBNERER (9 : TR RRIA - Non-current portion: prepayments, rental
HEReMNHEMEE deposits and other asset 45,891 42,526
BeNEMERIREFTZEEELS RH Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
ERiEe  HEABAT RERESAHE and deposits with suppliers. Where applicable, an impairment
BERCBEENSCUELRAGHRE analysis is performed at each reporting date by considering the
WAl ETTREST EEEABESAER probability of default of comparable companies with published
FEEFHTELRARIZERLT » A|I2EX credit ratings. In the situation where no comparable companies
SECBTERDHENBAREMFERE with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit losses are
EEE - BARRR R E A SRR KL estimated by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
BEARRTERAGEEEZ B R T)ELAE - historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to

reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate.

BIERLIAHRANSREE - 9MIT T Financial assets included in the above balances relate to
R ke EEENERERIEER - 1 receivables for which there was no recent history of default
ZEZEFERZIFE-NF+ZA=FT—8" and past due amounts. The assessed loss allowances as at 31
EEBETEAEM - December 2020 and 2019 were considered minimal.

EMEEREXARTERRASEREE Other asset represented initial royalty paid for opening Yoshinoya
HTrSEHE’W)] BT RERAE - and Dairy Queen stores.
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FEMANRIE- - &E  HMEWER  20. Prepayments, Deposits, Other

EHRHMEEE) Receivables and Other Asset (Continued)
)16
HHRERE
Initial royalty
AREFIT
RMB’'000
R-ZZE-_ZHF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2020
RZZBE-TF—-—HA—HBHKAK Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
n %% HE- £ amortisation 7352
NE Additions 1,262
FNEEH Amortisation during the year (2,325)
N—E_FF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2020 6,289
N _E_TF+_A=+—H: At 31 December 2020:
[N Cost 21,528
EET Accumulated amortisation (15,239)
REFE Net carrying amount 6,289
R-ZZE-NAF+=-A=+—H 31 December 2019
N =10 N Cost at 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
Mk REtE3E amortisation 6,441
NE Additions 2,643
F 1A 5 Amortisation during the year (1,732)
—hF+ZA=+—~1 At 31 December 2019 7,352
3 —hi—k -y :‘f'— A& At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020:
EXZIK Cost 20,266
RET#Y Accumulated amortisation (12,914)
REFE Net carrying amount 7352
CEEEEZERERAT

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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(a)

(b)

REMHETHEE
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21. Deposit Certificates and Other Financial

Assets

REFE (a) Deposit certificates
—ECEH —E-NF
2020 2019
ARETR ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

ATFEFEAEZEEHTA Debt instruments measured at fair
Hith il =mEB LA value through other comprehensive

income 60,000 60,000

BREENAPRIAMEESEMNIRITE
EMAREFE BEFHNNERI%:
JRETHAMR B36fEl A - REEFE R T A
HE e KEGERFTEAENERASE
—ERNATFEERBNERE KA E
R ABEFTFEAFE) -

AEHEDHEARARSREBEEREN
BFEHRRBAEZTA 2SN X
BERARBEFEEZAFE-

Balance represents deposit certificates purchased from a
creditworthy bank in Mainland China earning interest at a
fixed rate of 3.81% per annum with original maturity period
of 36 months. The deposit certificates are transferrable.
The fair value measurement of the deposit certificates is
categorised in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (i.e., fair
value measurement using significant observable inputs).

The Group estimated the fair value of the deposit
certificates by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rate of instruments with similar
terms and risk.

HithemEE (b) Other financial assets
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BREZEATEFEZ Financial assets measured at fair value
THEE through profit or loss
-ELrTERESR - Unlisted financial products 25,171 222,988
- RBEFE - Deposit certificate 20,970 20,000
46,141 242,988
“E-ZFFH® 155
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2. REGEREMBEMEE(E)

(b) HbEmEEE)
B’\_7_7$+ A=+—8 E#
CTREEERERUATFREANHEE
BFZRITAMBERGTHR A183RH
EmASRECHERLETEA
HMEEEEMNRITEENKREGTE
B EFFIE AE399% [RATHA IR A361E
HeRZE—NF+-_A=+—80" X
e @ EERNS RN E AR

BEERTAMBERITHARN T30
13039EE’J#LW$£{% EomEm&
BEFRAMEEEZMNRTEENK
BEE  BEFMNER399%  RE]EH
MR A36EH - KEFEA TEENE
B -HemEENAFHEAENDE
BRE_EROHATERER AERE
ABRGABEFELATFE-

AEECHEARARSREMBEENL
REMERABRBE 2 TR ZWEHMNE
EETZEFFLTREZATFE -

2. BERBEESEEY

21. Deposit Certificates and Other Financial

Assets (Continued)
(b) Other financial assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, other financial assets represent an
unlisted principal-guaranteed financial product purchased
from a creditworthy bank in Mainland China with original
maturity period of 183 days and a deposit certificate
purchased from a creditworthy bank in Mainland China
earning interest at a fixed rate of 3.99% per annum with
original maturity period of 36 months. As at 31 December
2019, other financial assets represented unlisted principal-
guaranteed financial products purchased from creditworthy
banks in Mainland China with original maturity periods
ranging from 30 to 303 days and a deposit certificate
purchased from a creditworthy bank in Mainland China
earning interest at a fixed rate of 3.99% per annum
with original maturity period of 36 months. The deposit
certificate is transferrable and redeemable. The fair value
measurements of the other financial assets are categorised
in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy (i.e, fair value
measurement using significant observable inputs).

The Group has estimated the fair value of these unlisted
investments by using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

22. Cash and Cash Equivalents

—E_TF —ZE—hF

2020 2019

AR® T AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

e MIRITHEER Cash and bank balances 132,849 111,506
REARRETHEHELREZFR Non-pledged time deposits with original
@Az mERE TR maturity of less than or equal to three

months when acquired 59,772 48,894
REBARRTZHBEBBE =M Non-pledged time deposits with original

ZEEAT TR maturity of more than three months
when acquired 210,000 92,500
HeMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 402,621 252,900

156 FEREEZRERAF
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ATINEREFERERREFEY:
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in:

—E-EHF —E-NF

2020 2019

AR®T T AREF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ok HKS 9,623 31,855
AR #& RMB 392,762 220,798
ETT United States dollar 236 247
402,621 252,900

ARBIGERABRAEMER - AW - R
BEREA 2 ONEE RGO RCEE - &
ERMETERTE) NEEEESBER
BEEINEXBRITBARBLBASE
&% -

PIRSRREEARAERNRGES
IHAEHE - EMEHEENT —XE
+oEAEE  BTAEENBEEERAT
TR % % 18 62 B E B T SR R BRER R 8. o 3R
AEBERRNEERFEESY mENR
87 IRTT o

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange businesses.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and twelve months depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.
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23. Other Payables and Accrued Charges

—BRCEH —E-NF

2020 2019

B it AR¥T T ARETT

Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000

aHaE Contract liabilities @) 3,804 4,281

Ho Al & A5 R IR Other payables ®) 64,632 66,324

EET &R Accrued charges 244,535 258,091

et Total 312,971 328,696

Mt - Notes:

(@) AHEBEERREHARERBITIZREAOE (a) The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount of the
EMESR XS BHEE - REEBAHH transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that

ABTZBOETMESR 2R ZERE
AEEAEPBERXERBR —FAERR

Y- REERRASE SRR DTS
EA 2 REWE R IEEE @A E P
ZHEHBBR - R_ZT-NEFR T -TF
BHBEBERLZIERARNEEREMF
BEPWE BT -

AR E B ERAORA (B ARESEW
MEHafE) s ARE4281,000T(ZZE—N
& AR#5,8680007T) °

) HuEMEERLEMFURREA—F
=@A
AREBERERAT

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

are unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period. The Group
expects that the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue within
one year when the Group transfers goods to the customers. The
contract liabilities included deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty point programme of the Group and short-term advances
received from customers for the sale of goods. The decrease
in contract liabilities in 2019 and 2020 was mainly due to the
decrease in short-term advances received from customers for the

sale of goods.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting period and included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period
amounted to RMB4,281,000 (2019: RMB5,868,000).

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have average
payment terms of one to three months.



B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

24, R 24. Share Capital
—E_EH —ZE-NF
2020 2019
AR T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
JETE Authorised:
14,800,000,0008% (=& — N, 4 : 14,800,000,000 (2019: 14,800,000,000)
14,800,000,000% ) & f% T & ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
FEHE010TT 2 B AR 1,205,529 1,205,529
BEEITREE: Issued and fully paid:
10,070,431,786 /% (ZF — L & : 10,070,431,786 (2019: 10,070,431,786)
10,070,431,786/1% ) & A% M1 1& ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
B0 B 820,284 820,284
KRG 2 BETEBRRRAREE KD E A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued ordinary
B EFENRMDRFAZEE R EST share capital and shares held under share award scheme during
PN the year is as follows:
ERITEBRRAE Issued ordinary share capital
217
RHEE BEIRE RHOREBE @Et
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
i ARBTT AREFT ARETT
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT Issued:
RZE—NF—HA—H At 1 January 2019 10,070,431,786 820,284 3,097,863 3918147
“E-NFREKE Final 2018 dividend 71 - - (51,356) (51,356)
RZZE—NF+ZA=1+—H At 31 December 2019 and
=TT HE—F—H 1 January 2020 10,070,431,786 820,284 3,046,507 3,866,791
“E-NFRERE Final 2019 dividend 1 - - (21,942) (21,942)
RZZZTF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2020 10,070,431,786 820,284 3,024,565 3,844,849
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B (E

24. Share Capital (Continued)

BRERGDEBFEFEZRG Shares held under share award scheme
ks BB2RMNEE ARETIT
Number of
Note shares held RMB’000
—hE—H—H At 1 January 2019 313,186,867 (33,191)
RIERDEBEFTEISE 2 Vesting of shares under share
award scheme (43,085,473) 4,510
RE R BN FT 2B A Z {5 Shares purchased under share
award scheme @) 67,376,600 (8,918)
AZE jl¢+ HA=4+—H At 31 December 2019 and
k—Z=-_ZTF—H—AR 1 January 2020 337477994 (37.599)
R EENFT BB 2 B fn  Vesting of shares under share
award scheme (33,003,064) 3,944
AZE-FF+-_HA=+—H At 31 December 2020 304,474,930 (33,655)

At -

@ HEZZ-AF+=ZA=1+—8 ZiTA
(m%ﬁﬁtﬁzé)&ﬂxm%%o.mﬁi%
#0.1607T Z B 1% + B8 A67,376,600% & % @
EABTZEBR  BRENAEARE
8,918,0007T ° ZERMEN HEAEFRN

BRERKRGRB

A RIS R B AR BF 8 R BRLAD 2 Myt 81
&ﬂﬁMﬁﬁ%E%ﬁZ$h%&hﬁﬁ
B2 515 9 BB 3 SRR M EE25 R 26 -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

Note:

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2019, 67,376,600 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each were purchased by the Trustee (as defined
in note 26) at prices ranging from HK$0.145 to HK$0.160 per share
at a total consideration of approximately RMB8,918,000. The shares
have been classified as treasury shares.

Share options and share awards

Details of the Company's share option scheme and the share
award scheme and the share options and share awards issued
under the schemes are included in notes 25 and 26 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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25. Share Options

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 12 March
2008 became effective on 25 April 2008 and expired on 24 April
2018 (the "2008 Share Option Scheme”). In light of the expiry of
the 2008 Share Option Scheme, a new share option scheme was
adopted by the Company on 8 June 2018 (the “2018 Share Option
Scheme”).

As the 2008 Share Option Scheme has expired, no options
can further be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme.
However, for the outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2008 Share Option Scheme, the existing
rights of the grantees are not affected. As at the date of
approval of these financial statements, there were 227,500,000
shares available for issue under the 2008 Share Option Scheme
representing approximately 2.26% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of these financial statements.

The purpose of the share option schemes are to motivate eligible
persons to optimise their future contributions to the Group and/or
to reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such eligible
persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions are or
will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of the
Group, and additionally in the case of employees, to continue to
enable the Group to attract and retain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions
and to provide such individuals with a performance incentive
for continued and improved services with the Group and its
subsidiaries. Under the share option schemes, the participants
include any employee (being executive director of, senior
management of, or other full-time or part-time employee of any
member of the Group); any non-executive director or proposed
director (whether independent or not) of any member of the
Group; any consultant, expert, agent or representative of any
member of the Group; and any person approved by the Board or
shareholders of the Company.
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BREE
—E-NFEEEE AT RZZT—
NERNANBRB  RZE-_N\FA+LH
B e RELERSTHRER 2B BIE
TE-)\FEREEAHEIT RO BH
£803,6291780% « HE R EFHHER 2K
NEIDEBITRRARL798% ° FMEA121E A 2 [
HiTFEE22EERERERERIEERT
- BEEERRTEBRE MEETRE
FRITZBROBETEBBARRZEET
RE1319% o UEoh - AT R12E BHE A — %
FEREYI " BBUERTESTAFEES
B 2 B8 AR 2 AT (A B8 AR 4 B 18 1 ) B
R 2 ARNEEEITRGEB01%H 2E (RA
AEIBRORTE BB WM EE) BEE
#45,000,0007C * MEBEERERBER RS
FHEE -

RIE-ZF—\FBREE 2GR A1TE
BREZHEA VBESET: HBRH
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EERERLzBRECANEZRE AL
2B AR RE B 100 E R - RIBEER
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HEERREERIBEREER(AREXRA &
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25.

Share Options (Continued)

The term of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is 10 years
commencing on 8 June 2018 and expiring on 7 June 2028. As
at the date of approval of these financial statements, the total
number of shares available for issue under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 803,629,178 shares, which represented approximately
798% of the issued share capital of the Company as at these
financial statements. The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
number of shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The period within which the options may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the 2018 Share Option Scheme,
shall: (i) be determined by the Directors; (i) commence on the
expiration of 12 months (or such shorter period as may be
determined by the Directors) from the date of grant of options;
and (ii) in any event not more than 10 years from the date on
which it commences.

The offer of a grant of options must be accepted within 21 days
from the date of the grant at a consideration of HK$1.00 for the
grant. The exercise price of an option to subscribe for shares
granted pursuant to the share option schemes is determined
by the Board, and shall not be less than the higher of: (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date on which the grant is made to a
participant, which must be a business day; and (i) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding
the date on which the grant is made.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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BREGE 25. Share Options (Continued)
RZE-EF+_A=+—H TIRE= As at 31 December 2020, the following share options granted
ZEEN\FEREGFEIR-E-\FHERES under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and 2018 Share Option
I T R T 2 B AR RE Scheme were outstanding:
BREYA RAERGER
Number of share options Price of the Company's shares
R )iy
R-Z-%F %%/ -B-BE SERAE
SEELZARN -A-B ERRY EATE ## t-A=t-8 RHEH i3 THEE RREAS REAMA
(Hr#3) ity (WY
Lapsed/ Immediately
At Granted Exercised cancelled At before the
Name or category of 1January during the during the during the 31 December Exercise At date of grant date of
participant 2020 year year year 2020  Date of grant Exercise period price grant share option
(Note 3) (Note 4) (Note 3)
BREY SBRE® SRER
HKS per HKS per HKS per
share share share
iz
Directors
AiERR 10,070,000 - - - 10070000 —E-AERANR  ZE-AERANRE 0189 0189 0190
(i) ZZZ\FRALHE
Seto Gin Chung, John 8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up to
(Note 1) 7 June 2028
£ EMR 10,070,000 - - - 10070000 —E-AERANR  ZE-AERANRE 0189 0189 0190
(Hrét1) ZZZ\FRALHE
Sze Tsai To, Robert 8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up to
(Note 1) 7 June 2028
BtE 10,070,000 - - - 10070000 —E-AERANR  E-AERANRE 0189 0189 0190
(Hrét1) ZZZ\FRALHE
Wan Sai Cheong, Joseph 8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up to
(Note 1) 7 June 2028
EER 72,500,000 - - - 72500000 ZE-RFEANE  ARKUTHECMEATERS 0127 0127 0130
(Hr#2) EE-T-REMANAL
Wong Kwok Ying 9 April 2015 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note 2) below and up to 8 April 2025
102,710,000 - - - 102,710,000
EE&: 227,500,000 - - - 2500000 —E-REMANR  AERUTHFeALREERRS - 0127 0127 0130
(Hiit2) EE-Z-REMANAL
Employees in aggregate 9 April 2015 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note 2) below and up to 8 April 2025
72,500,000 - - - 72500000 —E—tENAZTIA BERUTHECLREERR 01988 0197 0185
(Hiit2) EE-TLERAZT-ALE
22 June 2017 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note 2) below and up to 21 June 2027
463,233,000 - - (1309140000 332319000 ZE-AFRANR  BEMATHEeRATERFS - 0189 0189 0190
(i) EECZC\FRAtAL
8 June 2018 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note 1) below and up to 7 June 2028
72,500,000 - - - 72500000 ZE-AF-AZt-A BERATHETLATERS - 01628 0162 0162
(Wit EEZZ-NE-B-fAL
21 January 2019 Commencement subject to Note 6
(Note 1) below and up to 20 January 2029
835,733,000 - - (130914,000) 704,819,000
HEEHit7) 10,070,000 - - - 10070000 —E-AEXANR  ZE-AEXAN\RE 0189 0189 0190
(Hr##1) ZEZN\FERALR
Ex-Director (Note 7) 8 June 2018 8 June 2019 up to 7 June 2028
(Note 1)
948,513,000 - - (130914,000) 817,599,000
“E-TFFHR 163

Annual Report 2020



B} 755 ¥ 2% Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

164

BREE)

Hret

M

EHBREDRE-_Z-N\FERESZ
e

BRBREDRE ST N\FHERESE
e

BhEZzSBHHREPAHESITE MR
WBRILE o

BREZITERENTHE -

ARARBRMHPELEHNERRNELE
HIA B 22 P A SRR PG 2 B fn U T (B -

BRENGEBMRT2EESEEINESS
THREZESEETNE EFGLEE
SEEHFREBZERRKRE - BB
MoRERBRERBZFE BESTH
BrEREHRERBEERESICSEE
BlREZITEMERBES -

AR ratr R_E_TFA-HAH

AZARRRFBEFRGHERE - RITBYL
FERITES - RE-Z—N\ERES
% F 1% 210,070,00010 IR E DR AR B
EIEHERAL -

REBZE-Z-TF+-_A=+—AL
Eflﬂﬁﬁﬁk% BEL otk 7 488 5% BR 7T
B Z AT 1T EE RN FH U mE &
AF o

BREZAFEAARYS 321,000 (ZE—
HF : ARBE20,844,0007T) » TiiEEER HEE
AR i T iE 2 R G - A EAE
Bt E BRI - ZARABRNFRNERE
BRAR1152000c (ZE—NFERAR
#£1152,0007T) ©

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

25. Share Options (Continued)

Notes:

m The relevant share options were granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

2) The relevant share options were granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme.

(3) The vesting periods of the share options run from the date of grant
to the commencement of the exercise period.

“4) The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustments.

(5) The price of the Company's shares at the date of grant is the
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant.

6) The vesting of share options is subject to the participants’
achievement of performance targets to be set by the Board
from time to time. The Board will notify the participants, after
considering the participants’ performance and achievement of
the pre-set targets, the details of the vesting of share options,
including the number of share options to be vested and the date
of commencement of the exercise period of the vested share
options in accordance with the share option schemes.

(7) Hon. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, css, Jr retired as an independent
non-executive director with effect from the conclusion of the
annual general meeting of the Company on 2 June 2020. In
accordance with the 2018 Share Option Scheme, share options of
10,070,000 granted to him remain effective until the end of the
exercise period.

8) No information on the exercise price and the weighted average
closing price of the securities immediately before the exercise date
has been disclosed as there was no share option exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The fair value of the share options was RMB8,321,000 (2019:
RMB20,844,000) which was estimated using a binomial option
pricing model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The Company recognised
a credit of RMB1,152,000 (2019: credit of RMB1,152,000) during the
year.
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25. Share Options (Continued)

The fair value of share options was estimated using the following
assumptions:

—E-EE —ZT—hF

2020 2019

% B 2R (%) Dividend yield (%) 5.061 1.97-5922
T8 HA K 1@ (%) Expected volatility (%) 42.81-44.92 34.17-51.66
JE 2% 1@ (%) Historical volatility (%) 42.81-44.92 34.17-51.66
4 [ fo K & (%) Risk free interest rate (%) 0.44-0.75 143-243
TEEH — &% Exercise Multiple — Director 2.80 2.80
TEEE - ES Exercise Multiple — Employee 2.20 2.20

BRENERFHRSBRKRAEELNTT
EE -

?Eﬁﬂi)i‘i'bﬁ}i@%ﬁii&@jT}i@%ﬂi%ﬁ%%E@
BR - MALHKKRERNGER

SHEATES BRI AL OBREIHE -

RZE_FEF+-A=+—8 ARQAIRNE
f% # 5+ 2] '~ F817,599,00019 7 17 1% B A% #E -
BARRNBER 2 EARE  BEITEERIT
1 2 B8 % HE 15 38 B85 97817,599,000 A% A A 7]
T IR LA B B AR AN AN A R 668,842,000
TC R B& 7 5 B A R #44,607,0007T (R 51317
) e

BR-ZF-NAF-A-+—ARLBREN
$$&£¢W$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂiéﬁ%&ﬂjiﬂﬁ

RZZE-_ZTFE+-_AF=+—H ' ARAA
817,599,00017 M BE IE #E T 8118 T~ 2 R1T(F BE
fEiE - HERARABRZBZBEETRMHA
8.1% °

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur.

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 817,599,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 817,599,000
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
RMB68,842,000 and share premium of RMB44,607,000 (before issue
expenses).

Subsequent to the grant of share options on 21 January 2019, no
options were granted or exercised during the current and last
years.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 817,599,000 share
options outstanding under the share option schemes, which
represented approximately 8.1% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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REBE-_ZEZ-_EE+-_A=+—HILtEFE "
AETEE2HEHE(WIHFARRES T B17
BABSREBIRE - INIE LTI AL AE
ZAEER EmMRA)) R A #48,293,487
A% (= — NL4F : 62,914,0000% ) 1D 2 A% 17 22
Ej] °

PIEHZ RO IRARBMEBELNA B
TEBEFAMEANSENLINEE
WEHRE CREROBETIFEFAER
HETRE28E  EHABEXSERARMA
TREHEEES2EENERRATOIN -

EEREEEZERERAR
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

26. Share Award Scheme

On 20 March 2015, the Board of the Company adopted a share
award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a means to
recognise the contribution of and provide incentives for the key
management personnel, employed experts and core employees
of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
15 years from 20 March 2015 (the “Adoption Date”). The shares to
be awarded under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award Shares”)
will either be acquired by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme
(the “Trustee”) from the open market or be new shares issued
and allotted to the Trustee under general mandates granted by
shareholders at the general meetings of the Company from time
to time, both of which will be funded from cash contributed by
the Group. The Trustee will hold the Award Shares in trust for
the awardees until such shares are vested with the awardees in
accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme. The
Trustee shall not exercise the voting rights in respect of any shares
held under the trust.

The Board shall not make any further award of shares which will
result in the aggregate number of shares awarded by the Board
throughout the duration of the scheme to exceed 10% of the
total number of issued shares of the Company from time to time
and shall not award more than 1% of the total number of issued
shares to any selected participant from time to time.

The vesting of shares awarded to the awardees is subject to
conditions and vesting schedules as determined by the Board in
its sole discretion.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 48,293,487 (2019:
62,914,000) shares were awarded to certain selected participants
who are not a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder
of the Company, nor an associate (as defined under the Listing
Rules) of any of them under the Share Award Scheme.

The shares granted will be vested in the respective proportions
and on the dates as set out in the relevant letters of grant issued
by the Company. Vested shares will be transferred to the selected
participants at no cost, save that transaction fees and expenses
will be payable by the selected participants as transferees.
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26. Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of share awards and their average fair
value per share were as follows:

BRTY % 19 5 B
AFHE #E
Average fair Number of
value per share share awards
B
HK$
RZZE—-NF—HA—BRITHE Outstanding at 1 January 2019 0.16 110,951,624
BEET Awarded 0.14 62,914,000
B k&K Forfeited 013 (5,804,060)
= Vested 0.12 (43,085,473)
R=ZFE—NF+=A=+—HK Outstanding at 31 December 2019 and
—E-EF-A—HINKRTE 1 January 2020 0.14 124,976,091
BET Awarded 0.08 48,293,487
B R Forfeited 0.14 (3,839,385)
[ Vested 0.19 (33,003,064)
RZEZZEF+=A=+—H Outstanding at 31 December 2020
DARITE 0.11 136,427,129

W E_E_TERT-NFT A=+
BIEFE  AREERDEB A FEDE
AARBBROREEERNKTEZ 2T E
(BNE) fh & °

R
ZISEIEZK@*&@E@*ZW%% BN
EFEINGEEREHRAZR -

BEARELE
K| AEE 2 ARRSABENT

The fair value of the share awards granted during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 was estimated by using the fair value
(i.e, market value) of the closing price of the Company’s share at
the date of grant.

27. Reserves
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

28. Capital Commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital expenditure:

—2==%F —TNF
2020 2019
AR® T AREF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EHEEE g Contracted, but not provided for:
M BEREE Property, plant and equipment 9,655 5,505

“E-TFFHR 167
Annual Report 2020



B} 755 ¥ 2% Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

29. MEBRERERMET
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29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of

B Cash Flows
(@ METEBFEEZEESD (a) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities
HEBE
Lease liabilities
ARBF T
RMB'000
RZE—n&—H—H At 1 January 2019 800,369
wHEE New leases 218,692
wIFHE Termination of leases (16,434)
B Interest expense 40,997
BERFETH Interest expense paid (40,997)
HENREESHD Principal portion of lease payments (213,575)
RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
—ET_FEF—-H—H 789,052
g New leases 181,834
WIEHE Termination of leases (16,639)
HEBE Lease modification (33,541)
BT Interest expense 47718
B FESH Interest expense paid (47,718)
HMENZAE IS Principal portion of lease payments (167,059)
R-ZZE_TF+-_H=+—H At 31 December 2020 753,647
b) EXFBRERS (b) Major non-cash transactions
FRN AEEREFIHELRHEBHE During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
ReABEFRBEEERHEHERE  » right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB181,834,000
Bl A A R#181,834,000 T (ZZF—N4F - (2019: RMB218,692,000) and RMB181,834,000 (2019:
A R #218,692,000) &2 A R #5181,834,000 RMB218,692,000), respectively, in respect of lease
TT(ZE—NEF - AR#218,692,000) ° arrangements for buildings.
EEEEEZERERAR

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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20. HEBREREXRMET(E 29. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows (Continued)

) HERERELE (c) Total cash flow for leases
SAARERERCHER RN AR The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement
ONE of cash flows is as follows:

—E-EHF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
KEEBA Within operating activities 23,655 35,388
BEEB)A Within financing activities 214,777 254,572
238,432 289,960
30. FEAEALERS 30. Related Party Transactions

BRRIBREcEMIEOEEsFBEALT In addition to those related party transactions and balances

RGRESRIN  REBRFAF NIMER disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the

EEABLZNZHME: following compensation to key management personnel during

the year:
—BEZEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REEERT Short-term employee benefits 4,713 5927

RIKERE A Post-employment benefits 81 121

A& E 2 AR 19 17 Equity-settled share-based payments (293) (323)

MEBEEABIN S 4% Total compensation paid to key

management personnel 4,501 5,725

EHEEMe 2 E—THBHRAMBRE Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

B 5E8 © the financial statements.
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3. BERESTNWEMIA 31. Financial Instruments by Category
RmERARSESRTENEEENT The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

—EZEF 2020
EHEE Financial assets
REH ERER ERER
BASEz RATEANRZ RAVEGTERZ
tREE SEE tREE @t
Debt instrument
measured
Financial at fair value
Financial assets at fair  through other
assets at  value through  comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
AR TR AR TR AR TR AR TR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e BRTE Accounts receivable 27,032 - - 27,032
SABMTIE  BEeREM  Finandal assets induded in prepayments,

BUERESREE deposits and other receivables 79,513 - - 79,513
AERE Deposit certificate - - 60,000 60,000
EfemiE Other financial assets - 46,141 - 46,141
BehBHeSEY Cash and cash equivalents 402,621 - - 402,621

509,166 46,141 60,000 615,307
SHAaRE Financial liabilities
% # 6
BB BR 2
cREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AR T
RMB’000
FE T AR IR Accounts payable 118,727
FAEMENBEERESERAZ Financial liabilities included in other payables

AR and accrued charges 110,937

HEBE Lease liabilities 753,647
983,311

170 GREEZRERIF
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3. REAEsWEMIAE) 31. Financial Instruments by Category
(Continued)
—ZE-NF 2019
ERMEE Financial assets
REH ERBR EREE
AR BRATEAR BATEHEZ
SREE 2RE SREE B
Debt instrument
measured
Financial at fair value
Financial assets at fair through other
assets at value through  comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B R Accounts receivable 18473 - - 18473
STABMTIE e R EM  Finandal assets included in prepayments,

BURERE SREE deposits and other receivables 84,009 - - 84,009
RERE Deposit certificate - - 60,000 60,000
EemiE Other financial assets - 242,988 - 242,988
BehBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 252,900 - - 252,900

355,382 242,988 60,000 658,370
SHAasE Financial liabilities
KA BR 2
SRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
AREF T
RMB'000
FER BRI Accounts payable 129,166
FFAEMEMNEREREFERAZ Financial liabilities included in other payables and

LHAE accrued charges 110,040

HEBE Lease liabilities 789,052
1,028,258
“ESRFEFER 171
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable, other receivables, other financial assets,
accounts payable, other payables and accrued charges, which
arise directly from its investment and operations.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued charges
approximate to their carrying amounts.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity
price risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China
and its monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United States
dollars.

The management monitors the Group’s foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure when the need arises.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
translation differences arising from fluctuation in the exchange
rate of Hong Kong dollar are reflected in the Group’s equity and
profit/(loss) after tax, where appropriate.
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32. iIKEAKREEEERBE(Z 32. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

NS R B (42 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
RIUREMEHR - A HM B SR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
TEMERT  AEEBRBIEERN,(FHE) reporting period to reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
HARBEXRAEHENG EE B HX exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
E o Group's profit/(loss) after tax.
AEEKRBE
B E X | m
EHCFER) O &)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in the
(decrease) in Group’s loss
HKS rate after tax
AR®ETR
% RMB’000
—T_TF 2020
B AREAE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 7,279
WMAEBLARERE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) (7,279)
TEBERHEE
BWER wm g m,
EFH(FER) Ok 2)
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in the
(decrease) in Group'’s profit
HKS$ rate after tax
AR TR
% RMB’000
—E-hNF 2019
WEBHLARBAE If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 5 (6,286)
WEBLARKRE If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB (5) 6,286
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.
With such policies in place, the Group has been able to maintain
its bad debts at a reasonable level.

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2020

REAEH
FEBE 2HBEHEERE
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1B EpLAE K] 1 Kb @t
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARETRE AR®TR AR®Tr AR%Tr AR%®T=x
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
JE U BR 18> Accounts receivable* - - - 27,032 27,032
SABNMFHIE  %E % Financial assets included in prepayments,
H i fE U BRI deposits and other receivables
- — - Normal** 79,513 - - - 79,513
ReRkBReEED Cash and cash equivalents
- WABH - Not yet past due 402,621 - - - 402,621
482,134 = = 27,032 509,166
EEEEEZERERAR

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited



32.

BHEREEEERBEKGE

FEREE(E
\E-AFt-A=+—H

B} 755 ¥ 22 Bfi 53

Notes to Financial Statements

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019

1218 A8 5
FEER 2HEREERSR
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
F1RER Nl F3RE Bl HE maE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARBTFT ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B e BT+ Accounts receivable* - - - 18473 18473
STAENMFIE  %E % Financial assets included in prepayments,
H b fE U BRIE deposits and other receivables
- — g - Normal** 84,009 - - - 84,009
ReRkBReEED Cash and cash equivalents
- HARBHE - Not yet past due 252,900 - - - 252,900
336909 - - 18473 355,382

* RNEBERBCREEZBEIRE -

= RPATENFOR - A EEFREMEEN
TRMEENEREEERIARRR AR
[ER] EBERRAZSEEREEED
HIERARERRREZIEN -

BERASERRBUERMAZEERR 2
E—FEERE  NUBHRMEI7RE -

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment.

** The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in note
17 to the financial statements.
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32.

Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g. accounts
receivable) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans to meet
its working capital and capital expenditure requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payment is as follows:

- F-EEE BBRE o
Within 1 year 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
ARETR AR¥ETn ARETR AR¥ETx
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ZRIBF 2020
EfER IR Accounts payable 118,727 - - 118,727
STAEMERMEBELEFEBZ  Financial liabilities included in other payables
Ea=Y and accrued charges 110,937 - - 110,937
HEaRE Lease liabilities 219,821 480,822 230,352 930,995
449,485 480,822 230,352 1,160,659
—Z-NF 2019
R Accounts payable 129,166 - - 129,166
AAEMEREEREFTERZ  Financial liabilities included in other payables
tRAE and accrued charges 110,040 - - 110,040
HEaRE Lease liabilities 24177 505,614 214,058 943,849
463,383 505,614 214,058 1,183,055
AEEEZERERAR

Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited
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32. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Continued)

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group’s
products include beef, chicken meat and pork. The Group is
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw materials which
are subject to global as well as regional supply and demand and
other factors. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could
adversely affect the Group's financial performance. The Group did
not enter into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge
the potential commodity price changes during the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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33. AL F B # AR N R

BERARARBERRZUMBARANKRZE

33. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the

BEH AT Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
—F=%F —TNF
2020 2019
AR T T AREFIT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
REBRARZERE Investments in subsidiaries 2,844,151 2,844,151
W - BELRZRE Property, plant and equipment 14 -
EMBEERT Total non-current assets 2,844,165 2,844,151
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TEAS B & E A e W AR 1B Prepayments and other receivables 2,265 1,009
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 123 12
MENEE BT Total current assets 2,388 1121
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HMEMRIE R ETER Other payables and accrued charges 8,754 5972
JE A5 BT B8 A R R IR Amounts due to subsidiaries 141,273 118,679
mERBEER Total current liabilities 150,027 124,651
RBEEFEHE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (147,639) (123,530)
FEE NET ASSETS 2,696,526 2,720,621
R & EQUITY
BEITRA Issued share capital 820,284 820,284
i (h i) Reserves (hote) 1,876,242 1,900,337
MR Total equity 2,696,526 2,720,621
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33. AQFBMBEMRRK(E)

33. Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

M &t - Note:
KARIEEHEZBMENT A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
R 13 R 13
HEE  FREE SAR% ELRERE ZHER @t
Share  Share-based
premium payment  Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
account reserve surplus reserve losses Total
ARETFT ARB®TR ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE-NF—R—H At 1 January 2019 3,097,863 25215 13,006 19,823 (1188,263) 1967644
AEER Loss for the year - - - - (14,861) (14,861)
AFEME2ERY Other comprehensive expense for the year
-ERER - exchange difference - - - (3,011 - (3,01
AE2ENERTHE Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - (3,011) (14,861) (17872)
FBBRMREFTE 2R Vesting of shares of share award scheme - (3929) - - (581) (4510)
DREZEZURMER  Equity-settled share-based payments - 6,431 - - - 6,431
B g KX Share options lapsed - (4,212) - - 4212 -
2 \FEREBRE Final 2018 dividend (note 71)
(Htstn) (51,356) - - - - (51,356)
RZZ—NF At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
+ZA=+—-RBk
—Z-TF-A—H 3,046,507 23,505 13,006 16,812 (1,199,493) 1,900,337
KEER Loss for the year - - - - (10,520) (10,520)
AEHMWRERX Other comprehensive income for the year
-ERER - exchange difference - - - 9425 - 9425
AE2ERTBE Total comprehensive expense for the year - - - 9,425 (10,520) (1,095)
FERHBETEIZRM  Vesting of shares of share award scheme - (5,582) - - 1638 (3.944)
DWREZEZURMER  Equity-settled share-based payments - 2,886 - - - 2,886
BREREHLX Share options and awards lapsed - (1,545) - - 1,545 -
“E-NEREKRE Final 2019 dividend (note 71)
(Brt) (21,942) - - - - (21,942)
RZZB_ZTF At 31 December 2020
+-A=+—8 3,024,565 19,264 13,006 26,237 (1,206,830) 1,876,242
“E-2FFHR 179
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33.
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33.

Statement of Financial Position of the
Company (Continued)

The Company's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company allotted under a reorganisation whereby Hop Hing
Holdings Limited (‘HHHL"), the then ultimate holding company
of the Group, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and the consolidated shareholders’ equity of HHHL
and its subsidiaries as at 25 April 2008, the date on which this
reorganisation became effective. Details of this reorganisation
were set out in HHHL's scheme document dated 14 March 2008.

The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value of share
options and share awards granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to share capital when the related
options or share awards are exercised, or be transferred to retained
profits should the related options or share awards expire or be
forfeited.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
net amount of reserves distributable to shareholders of the
Company as at 31 December 2020 was RMB1,830,741,000 (2019:
RMB1,860,020,000), the distribution of which is subject to the
condition that, immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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Company Limited*

3. T ENBARIFTE 34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
ARl X EMBARIZFBUET Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
SR BEIRE/  ARAME
L RS BRREAEE - KREAIHE FEXRE
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration and and fully paid attributable to
Name operations share capital ~ the Company Principal activities
AHEREEZRERRA REABRES 46,5093 7T 100 REZEK
Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$46,509 100 Investment holding
tREHERREFRDA" hE/HEA AR #18,770,0007C 100 KEREE
Beijing Yoshinoya Fast Food Company Limited*  PRC/Mainland China RMB18,770,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
ARREBERAF B BEIT 100 fREEERE
Champ Base Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
REREREBRDA" hE/HEA 800000% 7T 100 EMERERE
Dalian Hexing Fast Food Company Limited* PRC/Mainland China US$800,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
RRERRERERFRAR HE/HEA AR #2,0000007C 100 EEREE
Harbin Hop Hing Catering Management Limited*  PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
ERARRA B 7 #1,000,0007C 100 REEK
Hawick Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
AEREDELTREBRAF REABRES E 100 fREEERE
Hop Hing Fast Food China North Investment British Virgin Islands USS1 100 Provision of management services
Company Limited
AEREBERAA BE 78 #7,000,0007C 100 RHERRS
Hop Hing Fast Food Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000,000 100 Provision of management services
AEBFARAF Big BEIT 100 FREEERS
Hop Hing Franchise Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
AEREREBRAA B BEIT 100 REEERS
Hop Hing QSR Investments Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100 Provision of management services
WHERSREERERGRAA" hE /B R A R %500,0007T 100 EEREE
HuHeHaole Hop Hing Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
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3. TEMBLATFEE(E)

35.

182

34. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)
B3 A BRTRE/  KDAMM
% AR EE R BRRAEE REBIL IEXH
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Nominal value of of equity
registration and issued/and fully attributable to
Name operations paid share capital ~ the Company Principal activities
BESEREBRAF hE/HEA 75 #9,00,0007C 100 SEREE
Liaoning Hop Hing Fast Food Company PRC/Mainland China HK$9,100,000 100 Fast food restaurant operation
Limited*
REEREARENERARDAA" hE/ R A R #5000007T 100 REZRKRHEE R RS
Tianjin Hejia Xingtai Catering Management PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100 Investment holding and provision of
Company Limited* management services
RETREEEMRBRRA hE/RERM AR #20,000007T 100 RERRHEEERSE
Tianjin Jishisong Information Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB20,00,000 100 Procurement and provision of
Company Limited* management services
* REBEREDEEAMZINEBEE R E * Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law

BeEEEREBIERAER AR EFIFAE
FTENBRAREBEARAEERE  REZ
TECEFEA+-A=+—BItFE  KAA
REMMBRATFGRET L EZS) -

EERA  LRANZAARMBATE A
FELEHNEEAVE RUEAEEIE
EZEBHH  MBHELGKBATZHE

KeEREBAERITE -

B HmR 2%

AP BBREAEFER T _—

+ A Az BRI -

SEEEZERERAT
Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited

Except for Hop Hing Fast Food Group Holdings Limited, all the
above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.
There was no change in the percentage of equity attributable to
the Company for the above subsidiaries during the year ended 31
December 2020.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

35. Approval of the Financial Statements

F=ZA=

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.
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Five Year Financial Summary

BERBEYRFE 2 AEEDTIENEEN LR A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
SEEERBEMEHINAT - the Group for the last five financial years is set out below.

BEt-A=1-HLEE
Year ended 31 December

ZE-8E —T-HhEFE —Z-N\F —Z—+F —T—RE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ARBTRE ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETRL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(E75) (& E35) (=751
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

4 RESULTS
EEHE Turnover 1,590,270 2,102,814 2,003,617 1,923,286 1,790,164
REER/(E1B) Profit/(loss) from operating activities (45,676) 193,270 152,688 209415 151,895
BER AR Finance costs (47,971) 41523) ©21) 817) (716)
BEaaER/(B8) Profit/(loss) before tax (93,647) 151,747 152,067 208,598 151,179
FERRe,/ (FAX) Income tax credit/(expense) 11,746 (47637) (48,587) (63,504) (44,509)
AEGRH/(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year (81,901) 104,110 103,480 145,094 106,670
E1h Attributable to:

ARAIREREEA Equity holders of the Company (81,901) 104,110 103480 145,094 106,670
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Five Year Financial Summary

BE+-A=1+-BLEE

As at 31 December

BB —“T-NF —E-N\F ZT—tF ZE-1F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ARETRE ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(&%) (& &5) (&)
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BE ASSETS
nE - BERR Property, plant and equipment 164,272 206,203 183,018 177826 169,261
FREBE Right-of-use assets 525,271 626,080 - - -
REEGCEZRE Investment in a joint venture 5,979 8,556 9,820 - -
EEREAEE Deferred tax assets 132,531 87128 43788 37092 30934
ERREREERE R Prepayments and rental deposits and
HEE other assets 45,891 42526 45968 42998 22126
MEEE Current assets 765,571 835,107 796,077 763,931 636,844
EEHE TOTAL ASSETS 1,639,515 1,805,600 1,078,671 1,021,847 879,165
& LIABILITIES
mEaRE Current liabilities 631,987 656,698 473,680 456,607 407004
REMEEE Deferred tax liabilities 17,379 22,666 2108 20,618 20,759
HEARE Lease liabilities 576,740 603,075 - - -
EEAE TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,226,106 1,282,439 494,788 477225 427763
FEE NET ASSETS 413,409 523161 583,883 544,622 451,402
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